
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

 

7.00 pm 
Thursday 

23 May 2024 
Council Chamber - 

Town Hall 

 
Members 7 Quorum 3 
 
COUNCILLORS: 
 

Conservative Group 
(3) 

Havering Residents’ Group 
 (3) 

Labour Group 
 (1) 

Ray Best 
Dilip Patel 

Vacant 
 

Laurance Garrard (Chairman) 
Reg Whitney (Vice-Chair) 

Bryan Vincent 

Jane Keane 

   

 
 

For information about the meeting please contact: 
Taiwo Adeoye 01708 433079 

taiwo.adeoye@onesource.co.uk 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack



Strategic Planning Committee, 23 May 2024 

 
 

 

Under the Committee Procedure Rules within the Council’s Constitution 
the Chairman of the meeting may exercise the powers conferred upon the 
Mayor in relation to the conduct of full Council meetings.  As such, should 
any member of the public interrupt proceedings, the Chairman will warn 
the person concerned.  If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will 
order their removal from the meeting room and may adjourn the meeting 
while this takes place. 
 
Excessive noise and talking should also be kept to a minimum whilst the 
meeting is in progress in order that the scheduled business may proceed 
as planned.  
 
 
 
Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London 
Borough of Havering 
 
Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet, 
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law. 
 
Reporting means:- 
 

 filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting; 

 using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at 
a meeting as it takes place or later; or 

 reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so 
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the 
person is not present. 

 
Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary 
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted. 
 
Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076 
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable 
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from 
which to be able to report effectively. 
 
Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and 
walking around could distract from the business in hand. 
 



Strategic Planning Committee, 23 May 2024 

 
 

 



Strategic Planning Committee, 23 May 2024 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
  

The Chairman will make his announcements. 
 
Applications for Decision 
 
I would like to remind members of the public that Councillors have to make decisions 
on planning applications strictly in accordance with planning principles. 
 
I would also like to remind members of the public that decisions may not always be 
popular, but they should respect the need for Councillors to take decisions that will 
stand up to external scrutiny or accountability.  
 
 

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE 
MEMBERS  

 
 (if any) - receive. 

 
 

3 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  
 
 Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the agenda at this 

point in the meeting. 
 
Members may still disclose any interest in an item at any time prior to the 
consideration of the matter. 
 
 

4 MINUTES (Pages 5 - 14) 
 
 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 

7 December 2023 and 25 January 2024 and to authorise the Chairman to sign them. 
 
 

5 LAND NORTH OF FEN LANE, NORTH OCKENDON (Pages 15 - 44) 
 
 Report attached 

 
 
 
 

 
 Zena Smith 

 Head of Committee and Election 
Services 

 
 
 



 

 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 
Council Chamber - Town Hall 

7 December 2023 (7.00  - 9.45 pm) 
 
Present: 
 
COUNCILLORS  
 
Conservative Group 
 

John Crowder, Dilip Patel and +Philippa Crowder 
 

Havering Residents’ 
Group 
 

Laurance Garrard (Chairman), Reg Whitney (Vice-
Chair) and Bryan Vincent 

Labour Group 
 

Jane Keane 
 

 
 
Also present at the meeting were Councillor Chris Wilkins, Councillor Oscar Ford and 
Councillor Judith Holt.  

 
There were 13 members of the public present for the meeting. 
 
The Chairman reminded Members of the action to be taken in an emergency. 
 
 
30 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE 

MEMBERS  
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Ray Best (Councillor Philippa Crowder 
substituted). 
 

31 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  
 
There were no disclosures of interest. Councillor Jane Keane stated that 
she was a member of the Romford Civic Society. 
 

32 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of 28 September 2023 were agreed as a true 
record of the same and the Chair was authorised to sign them.  

 
33 W0073.23 - RAINHAM LODGE FARM, BERWICK POND ROAD, 

UPMINSTER  
 
The Committee received a presentation from Stephen Daw a chartered 
surveyor and Simon Treacy Planning Director on the phased Mineral 
Extraction/Inert Infilling Proposal with Restoration to a Mixture of Nature 
Conservation and Agricultural Afteruses (Rainham Lodge Farm) with 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Strategic Planning Committee, 7 December 
2023 

 

 

 

continued Stockpiling and Processing of Mineral, Concrete Batching and 
Aggregate Bagging (Rainham Quarry); Associated Highway Improvements 
on behalf of Brett Group Limited. 
 
As set out in the committee rules, the Developer was given 20 minutes to 
speak. 
 
The Committee noted the report and the following considerations were 
summarised as follows: 
 

 Further details as to why the equipment at Rainham Quarry is not 

being moved. 

 Expressed concern about the safety along the road and the potential 

for conflict between HGVs and cyclists. Members would like some 

further information to understand how that risk is being addressed. 

 In relation to page nine of the slide, Members sought to understand 

what is meant by no scope for passing places. 

 The Committee is seeking guarantee and reassurance around 

materials. Making sure there is appropriate check. 

 Details of noise mitigations. 

 Members looking for reassurance or demonstration in the application 

that in terms of the tracking applicant is factoring or taking into 

account all different vehicle sizes.  

 Keenness to see an adjustment to the working hours on a Saturday, 

that 7am on a Saturday is early could applicant consider an 

alternative start time as part of submission. 

 Further details around the landscaping scheme for the woodland 

area, details of the trees to be planted.  

 The specific number of residential properties impacted through traffic 

movements.  

 Further details around the routing of the extracted material. 

 Further details as to how vibration would be experienced and what 

causes it.  

 Further details on the flood prevention measures. 

 Regarding Berwick Pond Road, future issues of state of disrepair 

along the route. Members are keen to understand what measures or 

mitigations that the company would offer up as part of any 

submission.  

 The small bridge on Launders Lane, whether there is an ability to 

widen the bridge/road.  

Any further comments or considerations could be emailed to the Head of 
Strategic Planning within 1 week of the meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 6



Strategic Planning Committee, 7 December 
2023 

 

 

 

34 P2072.22 - THE SEEDBED CENTRE AND ROM VALLEY RETAIL PARK, 
ROMFORD, RM7 0AZ  
 
The report before the Committee sought outline planning permission on the 
land at Rom Valley Way in Romford, a site known as Seedbed Centre and 
Rom Valley Way Retail Park. The application is for the comprehensive 
redevelopment of the site for a mixed use development which is residential 
led and would deliver up to 840 new homes as well as a minimum of 
3,000sqm of industrial floorspace, plus retail and leisure floorspace, public 
and private open space, highways improvements, landscaping and other 
benefits such as the naturalisation of the River Rom.  

 

The Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to GRANT 
PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the conditions as set out in the report. 
 
The vote for the resolution to grant planning permission was carried by 6 
votes to 1 against. 
 
Councillor Dilip Patel voted against the resolution. 
 
 

35 P2071.22 - THE SEEDBED CENTRE, UNIT E5, DAVIDSON WAY, 
ROMFORD  
 
The report before the Committee sought outline planning permission, with 
all matters reserved, for the demolition of existing buildings and structures 
and redevelopment to create a 2 Form Entry School of up to 4 storeys, 
including all associated works, on the land at Rom Valley Way in Romford - 
a site known as Seedbed Centre and Rom Valley Way Retail Park.  
 
This application was presented for consideration alongside the approval of 
the outline planning application P2072.22 at Seedbed Centre, Rom Valley 
Way in Romford for the comprehensive redevelopment of the land for a 
mixed use development.  
 
Officers clarified to the Committee that the application was to go ahead side 
by side and in the event of both sites are not being developed, there would 
be some financial contribution to be paid for the Seedbed scheme. It was 
stated that the obligation sets out that the school being developed is 
dependent on both schemes coming forward hence the need for a school 
would not arise if the whole of the strip was not developed. 
 
The Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to GRANT 
PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the conditions as set out in the report. 
 
Members voted unanimously for the resolution to grant planning permission. 
 

  
 

Page 7



Strategic Planning Committee, 7 December 
2023 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 Chairman 
 

 

Page 8



 

 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 
Council Chamber - Town Hall 

25 January 2024 (7.01  - 9.06 pm) 
 
Present: 
 
COUNCILLORS 8 
 
Conservative Group 
 

Ray Best, John Crowder and Philippa Crowder 
(substituting for Dilip Patel) 
 

Havering Residents’ 
Group 
 

Laurance Garrard (Chairman), Bryan Vincent and 
Paul Middleton (substituting for Reg Whitney) 

Labour Group 
 

Jane Keane 
 

 
 
All decisions were taken with no votes against. 
 
The Chairman reminded Members of the action to be taken in an emergency. 
 
 
36 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE 

MEMBERS  
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Dilip Patel (Philippa Crowder 
substituting) and Reg Whitney (Paul Middleton substituting).  
 

37 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  
 
There were no disclosures of interest. 
 

38 MINUTES  
 
The Committee considered the minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 
2023 and it was noted that minute 35 concerning P2071.22 – The Seedbed 
Centre, Unit E5, Davidson Way, Romford was not accurate and did not 
make reference to the two form Primary School. It was agreed that an 
amended minute on this matter would be presented at the next meeting of 
the Committee.  
 
The minutes were otherwise agreed as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman.  
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 9



Strategic Planning Committee, 25 January 
2024 

 

 

 

39 W0152.23 - CHIPPENHAM ROAD  
 
The Committee was advised that 138 flats were proposed in a Council-led 
development. There would be 117 affordable flats as well as 21 units for 
care leavers. The church at the location would be remaining on the site. 
 
The scheme had been progressed with officers and a quality review panel 
was now in place. The development would have 100% affordable housing 
with 10% wheelchair provision. Accessible units in the buildings would be 
accessed from Chippenham Road and parking would be available around 
the perimeter of the site. Storage for mobility vehicles and wheelchairs 
would be built into the development. There was potential for a community 
garden and there would also be a high number of dual aspect units in the 
development. Landscaping would include integrated play spaces. 
 
Whilst accepting that part of Chippenham Road was in a Controlled Parking 
Zone, the site was surrounded by unrestricted parking zones and 
representatives of the developer advised that spare parking capacity had 
been surveyed in nearby roads such as Dartfields and had been found to be 
at around 50%. The development would have a parking ration of 0.4 spaces 
per unit of housing. This was the maximum allowed under the London plan 
and the developer did not wish to overprovide parking if there were sufficient 
on street parking spaces available. Accessible parking and electric vehicle 
charging points would be available on site. 
 
The planning consultant for the applicant explained that he worked in close 
consultation with the Council’s housing team. The homes for young people 
would be provided for clients who had recently left Havering Care Services. 
There would be an on-site support officer available but it was accepted that 
this would only be during the day, not on a 24-hour basis. The supported 
units would be in a specific part of the site with a separate entrance. 
Occupants would be at least 18 years of age and more detail could be given 
of the design of the units. Members remained concerned at the prospect of 
housing young people together in this way.  
 
The development was supported by local ward Councillors who were 
pleased with the increased provision of 3-bedroom homes but felt this 
should be raised further if possible. Ward Councillors also supported the 
provision for care leavers, provided that the correct support was given to the 
young people and felt that the proposed landscaping was important for the 
area. They felt that there were enough parking spaces in the area and that 
the development should link in with the proposed redevelopment of the 
shopping centre in Harold Hill. 
 
The Committee noted the report and the presentation by the developer and 
raised the following matters for consideration as the proposal moved 
forward: 
 

 The lack of architectural merit in the proposals although it was noted 
that the designs were still at an early stage.  

Page 10



Strategic Planning Committee, 25 January 
2024 

 

 

 

 Concern from some Members that there were not enough parking 
spaces in the development. It was noted that a car club would be 
provided and that Harold Wood station could be reached by bus in 10 
minutes. The developer therefore felt that there would be adequate 
parking provision. A transport assessment would be undertaken as 
part of the planning application. A parking management plan would 
also be included. Cycle parking would also be provided in line with 
the London Policy.  

 Concern that delivery vehicles would have to park in the street rather 
than on site as would refuse collection vehicles. 

 The provision of electric vehicle charging points should be at least in 
accordance with the London Plan. Officers also advised that there 
would be dedicated parking spaces for electric vehicles. Members 
also felt that consideration should be given to parking facilities for 
vehicles from utility companies etc. 

 That more large, family homes should be provided. The developer 
responded that more 3-bedroom homes as well as two 4-bedroom 
homes had now been added and that adding further larger homes 
would reduce the overall number of units available. Members 
continued to feel however that the pressure in the local area for 
larger homes should be addressed by the development.  

 That effective on-site supervision of occupants of the units for young 
people should be available. More detail should be provided of the 
design of the supported units.  

 Reassurance was needed that the district heating scheme would not 
be cost prohibitive although the planning consultant confirmed that 
the scheme was in line with national policy. 

 
Any further comments were requested to be sent to planning officers within 
the next week.  
 
 

40 P0070.23 - VEOLIA LTD - COLDHARBOUR LANE  
 
A report before the Committee summarised an application relating to a site 
of 2.4 hectares with access from Coldharbour Lane. The site currently 
comprised two recycling facilities and an uplift to the buildings of 
approximately 3,500 m2 was proposed. The number of parking spaces 
proposed had now been reduced so there would be a low physical impact of 
the development. 
 
Officers confirmed that there were no concerns over noise or air quality and 
that the proposal was considered acceptable for environmental issues. An 
ecology consultant had recommended some conditions that would increase 
biodiversity at the site. Parking management and travel plans would be 
drawn up for the site.  
 
The site was in a zone 3 risk area for flooding but officers did not feel there 
were any major concerns re this. No additional flood measures were 

Page 11



Strategic Planning Committee, 25 January 
2024 

 

 

 

planned but the Environment Agency had recommended some appropriate 
conditions.  
 
The site would operate 24 hours per day and there would be 20 extra HGV 
movements per day plus an extra 40 on site. The vehicles would not 
however be going past residential areas.  
 
The Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to GRANT 
PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the conditions as set out in the report 
as well as an extra condition that the agreement of an additional Head of 
Terms re cycle access improvements be delegated to officers. 
 
The vote in favour of granting planning permission was carried unanimously, 
7 votes to 0.  
 
  
 

41 P1358.22 - RAINHAM MARSHES, SILT LAGOONS, COLDHARBOUR 
LANE  
 
The report before the Committee sought permission to redevelop 8.5 ha of 
an area of partially filled salt lagoons to the south of the A13. The area was 
currently used for the storage of materials and plant, with access from 
Coldharbour Lane.  
 
The application was for the extraction of waste and proposed a washing and 
screening plant by the lagoons, a crushing plant and materials storage. An 
ecological survey of the site had been completed by the applicant.  
 
106 neighbours and businesses had been consulted but no representations 
had been received. The development site had already been approved for 
waste processing and materials would be delivered by either road or river. 
Some 750k tonnes of waste would be delivered to the site per year.  
 
Visual impact had been assessed for a planned future recreation site in the 
area but it was felt there would be little visual impact from the development. 
The nearest residential properties were more than 1 km away. The 
application had been reviewed by the Environment Agency, RSPB and the 
Council’s ecological consultant and it was felt that this would lead to a better 
habitat in the area in the long run. 
 
A transport assessment had been completed in support of the application. 
Transport for London (TfL) had raised concerns over the local transport 
network and had recommended restricting the number of HGV movements 
at the site. Staff parking of six spaces was considered adequate but, given 
TfL’s recommendation to improve the local cycle network, around £45k 
would be sought to improve local cycle connections. 
 

Page 12



Strategic Planning Committee, 25 January 
2024 

 

 

 

The Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to GRANT 
PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the conditions and s. 106 amendment 
set out in the report.  
 
The vote in favour of granting planning permission was carried unanimously, 
7 votes to 0.  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Chairman 
 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



 

 

 

 

 

Strategic Planning 
Committee 
 

23 May 2024 
 

Location: Land north of Fen Lane, North Ockendon 

  

Ward: Upminster 

 

Description: Data Centre Campus and associated 

development 

 

 
 
1 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1  Members will recall that an initial developer presentation by the project sponsor, 

Digital Reef London Ltd (Digital Reef), was made to Strategic Planning 
Committee (SPC) on 20th April 2023 to introduce the proposal. Within the 
report, it was stated that the exact planning vehicle or process to bring the 
proposal forward had not been decided. A number of ‘considerations’/questions 
were raised at that meeting by Members, responses to those are contained in 
the appended document from Digital Reef. 

 
1.2 A second briefing was made to SPC on 8th June 2023 to explain the three 

routes through which this proposal could be considered and to advise that a 
decision had been reached by officers to explore the proposal through the lens 
of a Local Development Order (LDO). The briefing explained a LDO and set out 
the process for making a LDO. The report clarified that this is not to say that a 
LDO will be made, because that decision can only be reached at the end of a 
detailed process which fully considers all of the material planning issues. 
Rather, the decision which has been taken results in efforts now being 
channelled into a particular process.  

 
1.3 A third report was presented to SPC on the 28th September 2023, which 

provided an update by the Local Planning Authority (LPA) on channelling efforts 
into the LDO process.  In summary, this provided an update on the 
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) process, the appointment of specialist 
advisers and the seeking of a project manager, and the production of a 
Statement of Reasons to support the planning case for a LDO.  On informal 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



consultation, the report outlined that the conclusion had been reached that is 
that it is more appropriate to concentrate efforts on analysis and document 
production ahead of any formal consultation rather than consult prematurely, 
with limited information, on an informal basis. This also would mean that SPC 
would have more detail available at the point at which the decision to begin 
formal consultation is sought.  

 
1.4 SPC Members attended a site visit on 25th March 2024, accompanied by 

officers from the LPA.  Members raised a number of questions during the visit, 
the responses to those questions are within the appended document from 
Digital Reef. 

 
1.5 The purpose of this report is to update SPC on -  

 

 the proposed development and any updates from the last presentation to the 
Committee in April 2023 (presentation being provided by the Development 
‘Sponsor’ Digital Reef, and appended document providing details of the 
development) 

 recap on the Committee the LDO process, and update on progress on taking 
that forward 

 the progress on the Environmental Impact Assessment 

 outline the suite of documents that SPC can expect to receive in the report 
package at such point officers seek SPC approval to formally consult on the 
LDO (a presentation on this and the above will be provided by officers) 

 answer any clarifications to questions and considerations raised by SPC at the 
meeting on 20th April 2023 and the site visit on 25th March 2024 

 set out next steps  

 it is not the purpose of this report to provide a detailed planning assessment of 
the proposal and provide any recommendations, this would be done at such 
point that officers seek SPC approval to consult on the LDO 

 

2 PROPOSAL AND LOCATION DETAILS  
 
2.1  To recap, details of the site and its surroundings are set out below, and the 

most recent description of the proposals. 
 

Site and Surroundings  

 The site is located to the eastern side of the Borough, beyond the M25 and 

adjoins the boundary with Thurrock. It is approximately 215.6 hectares in area 

consisting mainly of open farmland.  

 The site is located to the north of Fen Lane and east of Ockendon Road and 

Clay Tye Road. It is mainly surrounded by similar open farmland, although 

opposite Fen Lane is Top Meadow Golf Course and there are sporadic 

residential/commercial uses including a care home and sewerage treatment 

works close to the site. Approximately 450m north to the closest part of the site 

is the Warley Electricity Substation/Grid Supply Point, adjacent to that to the 

west is a battery storage facility. 

Page 16



 The site is in an area designated as Green Belt. Other on-site designations on 

parts of the site include Mineral Safeguarding (to the west of the site), Flood 

Zones (2, 3a and 3b in the east of the site), Site of Importance for Nature 

Conservation, Archaeological Priority Zones, Countryside Conservation Area, 

Thames Chase Community Forest, and Land Suitable for Small and Medium 

Wind Energy Developments 

 A public footpath with a public right of way runs through the site, as do a high 

pressure gas pipeline and electricity pylons 

 The North Ockendon Conservation Area and associated listed buildings are to 

the west of the site. 

Proposal  

The proposal is for a data centre campus comprising a number of buildings 

containing information technology infrastructure, supporting infrastructure and 

energy plant, heated indoor horticultural buildings, an ecology park and a visitors’ 

centre. The proposal description set out in the EIA Scoping Report is as follows –  

 Maximum developable area floorspace of 400,000 m2 (Gross External Area, 

GEA) (with a minimum committed delivery of 279,400 sq.m (GEA)) 

 Up to a maximum of 340,000 m2 of data centre floorspace (GEA) (with a 

minimum committed delivery of 250,000 sq.m GEA) and associated external 

plant and security; 

 Up to a maximum of 60,000 m2 (with a minimum committed delivery of 26,000 

m2) GEA of indoor floorspace for heated horticulture facilities; 

 Green energy initiatives comprising: 

o up to a maximum of 6,000 m2 of hydrogen fuel cell energy generation 

floorspace; 

o up to a maximum of 10 hectares (ha) (minimum of 2ha) of battery 

storage floorspace; 

o up to a maximum of 2,800 m2 (minimum of 200 m2) of district heating 

energy centre floorspace; 

 Up to a maximum of 600 m2 (minimum of 200 m2) visitor centre floor space, 

including ecology park management and maintenance facilities; 

 Up to a maximum of 20,000 m2 (minimum of 3,000 m2) electrical substation 

and distribution infrastructure floorspace; and 

 A minimum of 113 hectares (280 acres) of new ecology park, accessible to the 

public.  Other areas of proposed extensive landscaping are to the north and 

west of the site. 

 Flexibility is required in the LDO to allow for a range of floorspace areas for 

uses, to accommodate the needs of future developers and occupiers of the site 

 The proposed maximum proposed building roof height would be 21 m above 

the finished floor level excluding roof top plant and exhaust flues which will 

extend no more than 5 m above the 21 m maximum building height. 

 The main site entrance would be a new access point from Fen Lane.   

 The Data Centre requires power from the adjacent Warley Sub-station to the 

north-west of the site, this can provide the initial power requirements for the 

Page 17



development, and will need to be upgraded to provide the full power 

requirements.  The sponsor, Digital Reef, has a power reservation agreement 

with UKPN to provide this power.  Power would be connected from Warley to 

new sub-stations on the development site via underground cables. 

2.2  The presentation by Digital Reef and the appended document responds to 
queries to date on the project proposals. 

 

3. THE PLANNING PROCESS 
 
Local Development Orders  
 
3.1 To recap, a summary of the LDO process is set out below.  
 

 A LDO is a legally binding document which provides permitted development 
rights for specified types of development. The power to make an LDO rests with 
the Council in its capacity as Local Planning Authority (LPA), under the 
provisions contained in the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended.  
 

 Making an LDO removes the need for a planning application to be made by a 
developer or landowner. In effect, the ‘permission’ is granted upfront by the 
making of the Order.  
 

 The process for making on LDO is; 
 
Stage 1 - LDO Preparation: the LPA prepares a draft of the Order and a 
statement of reasons and other supporting documents  
 
Stage 2 - LDO Consultation and Publicity: the LPA consult on the Order. 
Consultation includes local residents and statutory consultees.  
 
Stage 3 - Consideration of Representations: The LPA considers whether any 
revision is needed to the draft LDO and as a consequence, any reconsultation 
is needed.  
 
Stage 4 - LDO Adoption: The LDO is formally made by the LPA through a 
resolution to do so. The LDO (and all of its documentation) is sent to the 
Secretary of State and placed on the Planning Register.  
 

3.2  The Secretary of State cannot ‘call in’ a LDO, but can direct revisions, or revoke 
a LDO.   

 
3.3 Development of the scale proposed needs an Environmental Impact 

Assessment (EIA), which would identify significant environmental impacts, and 
measures to mitigate those impacts.  The LPA is responsible for making sure 
that requirements under the Environment Impact Assessment Regulations are 
satisfied. 

 

Page 18



3.4   Conditions can be applied in same way as a planning application.  S106 
Obligations cannot be required under a LDO, but there is nothing to prevent an 
obligation being offered by the developer/promoter and negotiated with the 
LPA.  The development as proposed is liable for Mayoral (of London) 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 

 
3.5  The Committee has an important role in the consideration and ultimate making 

of any LDO for this particular project. If an LDO were to be progressed SPC 
would be required to approve the statutory consultation on the draft LDO and 
approve the final making of the LDO.  

 
3.6 It is important to re-iterate that this report does not propose that a LDO be made 

for the proposed development on this site. As reported previously, that decision 
can only be reached at the end of a detailed process which fully considers all 
of the material planning issues, and is subject to approval by Strategic Planning 
Committee as set out above.  A summary of the progress on taking forward the 
LDO process is set out below. 

 
4. UPDATE ON PROGRESS  
 
4.1  Significant progress has been made in taking forward the LDO process as 

follows. 
 

Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)  
 

4.2  In June 2023, screening and scoping requests were submitted to the LPA on 
behalf of Digital Reef on the basis of whether a planning application, if 
submitted for the development, would need an EIA (reference numbers 
Z0003.23 and Z0002.23 respectively)  

 
4.3  In August 2023 the LPA responded to the request for a screening opinion by 

issuing an opinion that the proposed development would constitute EIA 
development in light of the likely possible impacts which the development would 
have on environmental resources in the locality and on a wider scale, mitigation 
of which should be set out in an Environmental Statement (the product of the 
EIA process) accompanying any planning application.  The LPA also consulted 
statutory consultees on the scope of the potential content of an Environment 
Statement, with the aim of adopting a scoping opinion. 

 
4.4  The LPA has since considered that both screening and scoping opinions for the 

Local Development Order need to be produced by the LPA itself and not the 
promoter.  As such, the LPA has re-screened the proposed development, and 
re-scoped the potential content of the ES, and consulted statutory consultees 
in March and April 2024.  The scoping opinion request from Digital Reef was 
withdrawn in February. The LPA has considered the consultation responses to 
the scoping report and at the time of writing is preparing to re-issue both 
screening and scoping opinions.    

 
4.5 The baseline evidence base for the EIA is in place, and technical impact 

assessments are underway covering those elements set out in the scoping 

Page 19



opinion, including ecology, archaeology and cultural heritage, socio-economic 
impacts, noise, air quality, transport and accessibility, ground contamination, 
water resources and flood risk, climate change, soil and agriculture, and 
landscape and visual impacts. 

  
Appointment of Project Manager 

 
4.5 As set out in the previous report to Committee, the LPA reported that it had 

commissioned planning consultants (Adams Hendry) and EIA consultants 
(Ramboll) to support it on the project, and would be seeking a project 
manager/case officer to take forward the LDO.  This has been achieved and 
the project manager has been in post since late November 2023.  

 
 Production of Key Documents for the LDO 
 
4.6 Alongside the EIA, work is in progress on a number of key documents that form 

part of the suite of documents to enable the making of a LDO for the site, and 
which will form part of the report package to SPC at such point that officers 
seek the Committee’s approval to consult.  A significant amount of the evidence 
base behind the LDO documents is being produced by Digital Reef, which 
officers review and scrutinise.  The LPA will be producing significant evidence 
base itself.  Using this combined evidence base, the LPA will be progressing 
those documents needed to take forward the LDO. 

 
4.7 The key documents in progress are as follows; 
 
 Planning Case 
 

 Statement of Reasons - setting out the planning assessment, and the ‘planning 

balance’, particularly with regard to the impact on the Green Belt and 

consideration of ‘Very Special Circumstances’ for development in the Green 

Belt.  This document is important in supporting the making of a LDO, and as 

such officers will need to be confident that all technical assessments have been 

completed satisfactorily in order to set out the planning assessment 

 Power Report – setting out the electrical power requirements for the proposed 
data centre, and why Warley Sub-Station is important in providing that power.  
This is a key locational factor for the proposed development on this site 

 Needs Assessment – setting out the need for data centres nationally and 
regionally, and how that need is driving the proposed development on this site 

 Alternative Sites Assessment – an assessment of other sites that the promoter 
has considered for the proposed development  

 Economic Benefits – a report setting out the estimated project benefits of the 
proposed development resulting from both construction and operational phases 
to influence the Statement of Reasons 

 
Compliance Documents 
 

 The LDO document itself - setting out the development that is to be permitted, 

any conditions and pre-notification requirements, and the duration of the LDO 

Page 20



 Design Code – this will be a key compliance documents, setting out a number 

of matters (eg building heights, use of materials, layout of parking areas, 

phasing) that any development must be in compliance with in order to be 

covered by the LDO 

 Code of Construction Practice – how the construction phase of the 

development, including construction traffic, must be managed 

 Travel Plan – setting out measures to be in place to ensure sustainable 

transport choices, and to avoid the need to travel, probably secured through a 

S106 agreement between the LPA and the promoter 

 S106 agreement – to secure the measures needed to mitigate the impacts of 

development, and provisions such as the Travel Plan, and Employment and 

Skills Plan 

Other technical assessments 

A number of other technical assessments are being produced and assessed to 

inform on the impact of the proposals and mitigation, including but not limited 

to:  

 Flood Risk Assessment 

 Drainage 

 Health Impact Assessment 

 Security Strategy 

 Landscape Strategy 

 Trees Survey 

 Circular Economy Statement 

 Design Statement 

5.0 CONSULTATION 

5.1 As advised at the SPC meeting in September 2023, the LPA is not undertaking 

informal consultation on the LDO, and is focussing efforts on production of all 

key and supporting documents for formal, statutory consultation that will provide 

detailed information on the proposed development, the assessment of the 

potential impact of that development, and the permitted development and 

compliance matters that the LPA will propose in the LDO.  Some initial 

consultation has taken place with statutory consultees though consultation on 

the EIA scoping report.   

5.2 Consultation requirements for a LDO, and an EIA, are set out in the Town and 

Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order 2015 and the 

Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 

2017 respectively, and consultation needs to follow the Council’s adopted 

Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) 2021.  Essentially, consultation on 

the LDO needs to be similar to that that would be undertaken for a planning 

application for the proposed development on the site, and there are specific 

requirements for consultation on a EIA when accompanying a LDO. 

Page 21



5.3 The specific consultation plan and arrangements will be set out in a future report 

to SPC seeking approval to consult, however, in summary this would include –  

 Site, press and website notices 

 Notification by letter to occupiers adjoining/adjacent to the site 

 Consultation notification to prescribed consultees (including the Mayor of 

London, the Environment Agency, Natural England, Historic England, adjoining 

boroughs, Health and Safety Executive) 

 Consultation notification to other consultee to be identified, such as amenity, 

environment and business groups operating across the Borough or the area of 

the development site 

5.4 The LPA will need to consider consultation responses and decide if they should 

lead to any changes to the LDO, the EIA and supporting documents.  A 

consultation report will be prepared and submitted alongside any report seeking 

SPC’s approval to adopt the LDO. 

5.5 Digital Reef commenced an engagement process with the local community on 

the proposed development in early May in the same way a developer would at 

pre-application stage. 

6.0 Next Steps 

6.1 The LPA will continue to progress the completion of evidence base documents 

and the production of the key documents set out above.  If officers consider that 

there is a planning case to be made for the development, particularly in relation 

to development in the Green Belt and whether any harm caused could be 

outweighed by the benefits of the development, and that any significant impacts 

have been identified and can be mitigated for the most part, it will revert back 

to SPC seeking approval to consult on the LDO later in 2024.   

7.0 CONCLUSION 

7.1 This report seeks to update Members on the current development proposal for 

the site, work undertaken since the last briefing in September 2023 and in 

progress, to outline the suite of documents the Committee can expect at such 

point that officers seek approval to consult on the LDO, and to answer previous 

questions raised on the development proposal. 

7.2 The Committee is asked to note the content of this report. 

Page 22



East Havering Data Centre 
Campus 

LBH Members Briefing May 2024

Digital Reef Project Update 

EHDCC

P
age 23



EHDCC

32

0.0 Executive Summary 

The Digital Reef team are delighted to have the opportunity to 
present a project update to Members of the London Borough 
of Havering Strategic Planning Committee (SPC). 
 

0.1 Contents 

1.0 - Project Progress Update 

2.0 - Project Summary 

2.1 - Detailed Project Description & Key     
Metrics 

2.2 - Indicative Masterplan

 2.2.1 - Landscape Design 

 2.2.2 - Site Access and Connectivity 

 2.2.3 - Site Land Use 

 2.2.4 - Building Heights

2.3 - Indicative Building Typology Drawings

 2.3.1 - Data Centre Buildings

 2.3.2 - Battery Storage & Fuel Cells 

 2.3.3 - Electrical Substation & Energy Centre 

 2.3.4 - Horticulture & Discovery Centre 

2.4 - The Masterplan Vision 

3.0 - Project Programme 

4.0 - Project Q&A

EHDCC

Concept visual 

Digital Reef are excited by the progress the East Havering Data 
Centre Campus project has made over the last 6 months. 

The project will see the delivery of a uniquely sustainable 
Data Centre Campus that delivers significant benefits for its 
community for generations to come and is a project we can all 
be extremely proud of. 

“ “

P
age 24



54

EHDCC

1.0 Project Progress Update 

Over the last 12 months The Digital Reef team have continued to work closely  providing 
information to the London Borough of Havering (LBH) Local Planning Authority (LPA) team as 
they progress the required documentation for the Local Development Order (LDO) process. 

The LBH LPA team have appointed consultants to support it through the LDO process 
and are working on key project work-streams including drafting the LDO, submitting the 
Environmental Impact Assessment screening and scoping documentation, and progressing the 
information required for formal consultation. Digital Reef and our wider team have continued 
to support both through providing evidence to support the evolution of a LDO documents, 
and the environment impact assessment process providing input data, design information and 
technical support.

The Digital Reef team have also appointed Martha Grekos KC as a key member of the project 
team who is on hand to assist the project team with any legal queries that arise as the project 
document being collated by all parties to ensure all legal points are being addressed promptly 
and that all potential legal challenges have been considered. 

Since we last presented to Members the details of the proposals for the site have been 
progressed and a full update is provided below along with responses to a number of queries 
raised by Members over the last 12 months, both at the SPC meeting in April 2023, and the SPC 
site visit in March 2024 attended by SPC Members and Officers.

The Digital Reef team have commenced a community Engagement programme to ensure our 
near neighbours and key local stakeholders are informed about our proposals.
The Digital Reef Team look forward to continuing to work closely with LBH officers to support 
the LPA in its consideration of the planning case for the development, and progression towards 
approval to consult on the LDO currently scheduled for summer 2024 and ultimately the 
consent which we hope will be in place during the Autumn 2024. 

Aerial Site Concept visual 

EHDCC

2022
November 

Project 
presented to 

Cabinet 

2023 Q2/3 
LPA appoint 

LPA appoint EIA 
consultants late 

summer 23

2019 
Digital Reef 

first approached 
LBH re the 

project

2023
April 

Developers 
Presentation to 

Members at 
SPC 

2024
May

Developers 
Presentation to 

Members  

Digital Reef 
Team 

Project 
Development 

and Due 
Diligence 
process 

completed. 

Digital Reef 
& LBH Team 

worked closely 
together to 

determine the 
appropriate 

next steps for 
the project, 

including the 
appropriate 

planning route. 

2019

2020

2024

Digital Reef 
& LBH Team 
continue to 
work closely 
to produce 

the evidence 
& information 

required by the 
LDO process. 

P
age 25



EHDCC

76

EHDCC

Aerial Site Concept visual 

2.0 Project Summary

The East Havering Data Centre Campus project provides a unique opportunity to create 
a sustainable Data Centre Campus of the future that contributes positively to its local 
community, delivers the infrastructure for a number of on and off-site renewable energy 
project and creates significant numbers of jobs both locally and nationally. 

The proposals include an extensive 113-hectare Ecology Park, created in partnership with the 
local community which will be open to the public and fully accessible through new footpath 
and cycling routes. Once complete the project will become a global exemplar and test bed for 
the co-location of data, low carbon energy, green tech, innovative horticulture and nature.

The proposed development will provide a range of economic benefits to the Havering 
economy throughout the construction phase and during operation. The proposed 
development represents a £5.30 billion investment to improve London and the UK’s digital 
infrastructure, of which £2.72 billion will be spent in the UK, including £2.0 billion in Havering, 
during the five-year construction phase. 

The construction phase is estimated to support an average of £204 million of GVA, 2,800 jobs, 
and £86 million in wages, across the Havering economy per year. Once fully operational, the 
proposed development will directly generate a net increase of £391 million of GVA, 1,240 jobs, 
and £65 million in wages, across the Havering economy. 

As supply chain (indirect) and wage consumption (induced) spending leaks outside of 
the Havering economy, the first full year of operations could generate a £736 million GVA 
contribution to UK GDP, supporting 7,130 jobs across the workforce, and £245 million in wages 
nationally. 2,410 of these jobs would be within Havering when the direct, indirect and induced 
jobs are all factored into the calculations. 

The number of on-site employees during operational phase would total 300 however these are 
split over three shift patterns with some employees only attending site once a week, no more 
than 30-60 people would be anticipated to be on site at any point during the average working 
day. (Please note LBH are currently reviewing these figures, in respect to the construction 
phase, and they are expected to increase greatly once revised costings are reviewed by Oxford 
Economics). 

EHDCC

Concept visual 

The new Ecology Park will occupy over 50% of the 
site area creating a publicly accessible and ecologically 
rich new public space for the people of Havering to enjoy.  

“ “

P
age 26



EHDCC

98 Aerial Site Concept visual 

2.1 - Detailed Project Description & Key Metrics

The proposed development is for a minimum 279,400 square meters and up to 400,000 
square metres of gross external floor area comprising data centres plus associated external 
plant and security (Sui Generis use), indoor horticulture facilities, green energy initiatives 
(including hydrogen fuel cell energy generation, battery storage and district heating energy 
centres), visitor centre and electrical substations and distribution infrastructure. In addition, 
the proposals include new access roads, civil engineering works, hard and soft landscaping, 
and formation of associated parkland/enhanced biodiversity habitat at North Ockendon, 
Havering, Greater London.

If the project is being delivered as an LDO the consent will allow a maximum and minimum 
floor area rather than a fixed floor area. The consent will also create a set of parameters 
including maximum building heights across a number of build zones. 

Noting the on-going design and engagement processes, the nature and scale of the 
development proposals are anticipated to comprise the following: 

EHDCC

Maximum develop-able area floorspace of 400,000 m2 (with a minimum committed delivery of 
279,400 m2) (GEA); 

• Up to 340,000 m2 (with a minimum committed delivery of 250,000 m2) GEA of data centre 
floorspace plus associated external plant and security.

• Up to a maximum of 60,000 m2 (with a minimum committed delivery of 26,000 m2) (GEA) 
of indoor floorspace for heated horticulture facilities.

Green energy initiatives comprising:

• up to a maximum of 6,000 m2 (GEA) of hydrogen fuel cell energy generation floorspace;

• up to a maximum of 10 ha (with a minimum committed delivery of 2 ha) of battery storage 
floorspace;

• up to a maximum of 2,800 m2 (with a minimum committed delivery of 200 m2) (GEA) of 
district heating energy centre floorspace;

• Up to a maximum of 600 m2 (with a minimum committed delivery of 200 m2) (GEA) visitor 
centre floor space, including ecology park management and maintenance facilities;

• Up to a maximum of 20,000 m2 (with a minimum committed delivery of 3,000 m2) (GEA) 
electrical substation and distribution infrastructure floorspace; and

• A minimum of 113 ha (280 acres) of new green / nature reserve space (ecology park), 
accessible to the public.

The new Ecology Park will be the 
size of
              174 football pitches.   

“ “

Concept visual 

EHDCC

P
age 27



EHDCC

11

EHDCC

Foundry London, Havering, 

North Ockendon, Upminster,   

North Ockendon  

51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

FOR INFORMATION  

Revision Date     Comments

project

drawing number

size 

A1

date 

27/02/2024

scale

1:5000    

REPORT DISCREPANCES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING 

COPYRIGHT REEFGROUP

USE LATEST REVISION

CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

MP  

revision

Key:

INDICATIVE MASTERPLAN       

Key Plan     

A

client      

Ashley
Farm

White Post

Track

Puddleduck
Farm Fisheries

The
Warren

40m

B
1
8
6

Kennels

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Path
Path

Path

Golf Course

Sewage

3
5
m

EER, Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

P
a
th

P
a
th

UA Bdy
UA Bdy

UA Bdy

Farm
Fen

FEN  LANE
Mar Dyke

Cottages

6m

Works

C
L

A
Y

T
Y

E
R

O
A

D

9m

27m

35m

Mast

Mast

Drain

D
ra

in

Clay Tye Hill

Garden
Centre

Corner Farm
Cottage

Farm

A
L

S

Path

G
N

5m

5m

Meadow

Golf
CourseAllot

Gdns

A
U

R

Remembrance

Farm
Corner

C
H

L
A

Cottages

20m

Fairplay

Farm

6m

B
1
8
6

7m

A

Nursery

Clay Tye Wood

Castle Cottages

Clay Tye
Farm

Warley Grid
Sub Station

Fen Farm

34m

I
N

N
U

FE

Lowlands

House
Claynes

D
ra

in

N L31m

Drain

D
ra

inD
ra

in

Depot

North
Ockendon

Track

D

Nursery

C
H

Drain

Farm
Home

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FB

Drain

FEN  LANE

O
C

K
N

D
O

N
R

O
A

29m

3
5
m

Drain

Farm
Bury

Drain

Top
Meadow

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Kennels

East View
Kennels

C
H

U

Drain

D
ra

in

FEN LANE

9m

19m

20
m

15m

1
0
m

15m

Lamorna

Bolyngtons2
0
m

1
0
m

30m

Cottages

Golf
Course

Bury Farm

T
ra

c
k

R
C

H
L

N
E

FEN
LANE

B
1
8
6

B1421

33m

32m

20m

35m

35m
U

A
 B

d
y

30m

10m

15m

Seven
Acres

Top

E
N

E

BOROUGH OF THURROCK

SUB 
STATION

EER, Boro Const,

40m

Sewage

FEN  LANE

Works

Corner Farm
Cottage

Path

5m

20m

Drain

Farm
Home

Drain

Drain

FB

FEN  LANE

T
ra

c
k

D
ra

in

Drain

D
ra

in

LANE

9m

19m

1
0
m

15m

Bolyngtons

2
0
m

Path
Track

32m

&
 LB

 B
dy

G
L A

sly C
onst

6

6

6

5

5 5

5

5

5

5

4

5

5

5

5

5

5

4

4

4

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

33

33

33

33

33

33

31

31

31

31

32

32

32

32

32

33

33

5

7

7 7

7

7

7

7

7

8

8

8

8

34

34

33

32

31

30

29

28

27

26

25

23

22

21

21

20

19

19

18

17

16

15

15

14

14

14

13

13

13

13

12 12

12

12

12

11

11

11

10

10

10

9

9

9

5

5

5

5

5

7

10

32

31

9

6

13

33

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.05.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

23.0

23.0

23.0

23.0

23.
0

23
.0

23
.0

23
.0

23
.0

23
.0

23
.0

23
.0

23
.0

23.
0

23
.0

23
.0

23
.0

23
.0

24.0
24.0

24.0

24.0

24.
0

24.0

24
.0

24
.0

24
.0

24
.0

24
.0

24
.0

24
.0

24
.0

24.
0

24
.0

24
.0

24
.0

24.
0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25
.0

25
.0

25
.0

25
.0

25
.0

25
.0

25
.0

25
.0

25.0

25
.0

25
.0

25
.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

28
.0

28
.0

28
.0

28
.0

28
.0

28
.0

28
.0

28
.0

28
.0

28
.0

27.0

27.0

27.0

27.
0

27
.0

27
.0

27
.0

27
.0

27
.0

27
.0

27
.0

27
.0

27
.0

27
.0

27
.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

26.
0

26
.0

26
.0

26
.0

26
.0

26
.0

26
.0

26
.0

26
.0

26
.0

26
.0

26
.0

26
.0

29.0

29.0

29
.0

29
.0

29
.0

29
.0

29
.0

29
.0

29
.0

29
.0

29
.0

29
.0

29
.0

30.0

30.0

30.0

30.
0

30
.0

30
.0

30
.0

30
.0

30
.0

30
.0

30
.0

30
.0

30
.0

30
.0

36
.0

36
.0

36
.0

36
.0

36.
0

36.
0

36.
0

36.0

36.0

36.0

35
.0

35
.0

35
.0

35
.0

35.
0

35.0

35.0

35.0

35.0

34
.0

34
.0

34.
0

34
.0

34
.0

34.
0

34.
0

34
.0

34.0

32.0

32.0

32
.0

32
.0

32
.0

32
.0

32
.0

32
.0

32
.0

32.
0

32
.0

32
.0

32.0

33
.0

33
.0

33
.0

33
.0

33
.0

33
.0

33
.0

33
.0

33.
0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.
0

22.0

22
.0

22
.0

22
.0

22
.0

22
.0

22
.0

22
.0

22
.0

22
.0

22
.0

22.
0

22
.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.
0

21
.0

21
.0

21
.0

21
.0

21.
0

21.
0

21
.0

21
.0

21
.0

21
.0

21.
0

21
.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.
0

19.0

19
.0

19.
0

19
.0

19
.0

19
.0

19
.0

19
.0

19
.0

19
.0

19
.0

19.0

19.
0

19.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.
0

20.0

20
.0

20
.0

20
.0

20
.0

20
.0

20
.0

20
.0

20
.0

20
.0

20
.0

20.
0

20.
0

20.0

18.0

18.
0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18
.0

18
.0

18.
0

18
.0

18.0

18
.0

18
.0

18
.0

18
.0

18
.0

18
.0

18.
0

18.
0

18.0

17.0

17.
0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17
.0

17.0

17.0

17
.0

17
.0

17.0

17
.0

17
.0

17.0

17.0

17
.0

17
.0

17
.0

17
.0

17
.0

17
.0

17.0

16.0

16
.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16
.0

16
.0

16.
0

16.
0

16.0

16
.0

16.0

16
.0

16.0

16.0

16
.0

16.
0

16
.0

16
.0

16
.0

16
.0

16.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15
.0

15
.0

15.
0

15.
0

15
.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.
0

15
.0

15
.0

15
.0

15
.0

15
.0

15.
0

14.0

14
.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14
.0

14.
0

14
.0

14.
0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.
0

14.
0

14
.0

14.
0

14
.0

14.
0

14.
0

14.0

14.0

13.0

13.0

13.
0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13
.0

13
.0

13
.0

13.
0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13
.0

13.0

13.
0

13
.0

13.
0

13.0

13.
0

13
.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12
.0

12.0

12
.0

12
.0

12
.0

12
.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12
.0

12
.0

12
.0

12
.0

12
.0

12
.0

12.0

12.0

12
.0

12.0

12.0

12.
0

12
.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.
0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.
0

11.0

11.0

11
.0

11
.0

11.
0

11.0

11.0

11
.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11
.0

11.
0

11
.0

11.0

11.
0

11
.0

11.
0

11
.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10
.0

10.0

10.
0

10.
0

10
.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.
0

10.
0

10
.0

10
.0

10.
0

10
.0

10
.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0 8.0

8.0
8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

7.0

7.0

7.0 7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0 7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

5.0

7.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0 6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0 6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0 6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0 6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

37.
0

37
.0

37
.0

37
.0

37.
0

37.
0

37.0

37.0

37.0

31.0

31.0

31.0

31
.0

31
.0

31
.0

31
.0

31
.0

31
.0

31
.0

31
.0

31
.0

31
.0

31.
0

38
.0

38
.0

38
.0

38.
0

38.
0

38.
0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

11
.0

11
.0

11.0

15
.0

15
.0

15.0

6.0

6.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

6.0

12
.0

9.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

4.0

4.04.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0 4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0 4.0

4.0

4.0

4.04.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

9.0

5.0

5.0

5.0
5.0

5.0

5.0
5.0

5.0

5.0

6.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

3.0

3.0

6.0

39
.0

39
.0

39.
0

39.
0

39.0

39.0

39.0

39.0

39.0

39.0

39.0

37.0

37.0

37.0

37
.0

40.0

40.0

40
.0

40.0

40.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

15
.0

15
.0

15
.0

13.0

7.0

7.0

8.0 8.0

8.0

8.0

7.0

7.0

6.0

8.0

8.0

7.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

6.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

12.0

9.0

9.0

10.0

10.0

5.0

5.0

5.05.0

5.0

5.0

6.0

12.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

5.0

5.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

3.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

4.0

4.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

DISCOVERY 

CENTRE

BATTERY
1000m2

BATTERY
1500m2

BATTERY
12,000m2

BATTERY
6,000m2

UKPN 

SUBSTATION

LH
P
 M

A
IN

 4
5
7
m

m
 ste

e
l

NHP MAIN

LH
P

 M
A

IN
 8

" 
st

e
e

l

O
V
ERH

EA
D
 PO

W
ER LIN

E BUILD ZONE A

BUILD ZONE B

BUILD ZONE C

BUILD ZONE F

BUILD ZONE G

BUILD ZONE H

BUILD ZONE D

BUILD ZONE E

BUILD ZONE K

BUILD ZONE I

BUILD ZONE J

UKPN 

SUBSTATION

SUBSTAION

FLC

320 sqm GIA

S
U

B
S

T
A

IO
N

F
L
C

3
2
0
 s

q
m

 G
IA

S
U

B
S

T
A

IO
N

F
L
C

3
2
0
 s

q
m

 G
IA

S
U

B
S

T
A

IO
N

F
L
C

3
2
0
 s

q
m

 G
IA

PS 1

PS 2

PS 3

PS 4

DISCOVERY 

CENTRE
 POND

 POND

 POND

 POND

B 01

B 02

B 03

B 04

A 02

A 01

C 02

C 01

F 01

G 01

H 01

E 02

E 01

HHC 01
27,182.56 m2

HHC 02
13,013.41 m2

EC

E 03

WETLAND

WET
WOODLAND

WET
WOODLAND

COPPICED
WOODLAND

BROADLEAF
WOODLAND

BROADLEAF
WOODLAND

MEADOW

EXISTING & 
ENHANCED
BROADLEAF
WOODLAND

MEADOW

BUNDING

BUNDING

BUNDING

B
U

N
D

IN
G

BUNDING

BUNDING

B
U

N
D

IN
G

B
U

N
D

IN
G

BUNDING

B
U

N
D

IN
G

WETLAND

WETLAND

+4.00m

+4.00m

+4.00m

+4.00m

+4.00m

+4.00m

+4.00m

+4.00m

+4.00m

+4.00m

+4.00m

BUILD ZONE

PONDS (EXISTING AND PROPOSED)

PROPOSED STRATEGIC CYCLE AND 

PEDESTRIAN ROUTES

PROPOSED STRATEGIC ACCESS 

ROADS

LEGEND
0 500 1000m

OVERHEAD POWER LINES

GAS MAINS

STRATEGIC BUNDING WITH TREE 

PLANTING

BUILD ZONE

PONDS (EXISTING AND PROPOSED)

STRATEGIC LANDSCAPING ZONE

PROPOSED STRATEGIC CYCLE AND 

PEDESTRIAN ROUTES

PROPOSED PEDESTRIAN ROUTES

PROPOSED STRATEGIC ACCESS 

ROADS

RETAINED DITCHES & HEDGE ROWS

RETAINED DITCHES & STREAMS

RETAINED AND PROPOSED 

BROADLEAVED TREES

PROPOSED SWALES (INDICATIVE)

LEGEND

PROPOSED MOUNDS

PROPOSED SECURITY FENCE

PROPOSED MEADOW FENCE

SITE BOUNDARY (NO FENCE)

INDICATIVE - For illustrative purposes only

Foundry London, Havering 

North Ockendon, Upminster   

 

51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDO  Rev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size 

A4   

date 

13/05/2024

scale

1:15000    
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS 

DRAWING 

COPYRIGHT DIGITAL REEF

USE LATEST 

REVISION

CHECK ALL 

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

ES1  

revision

Existing Site Conditions       

-

GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

10m

Ashley
Farm

White Post

Track

Puddleduck
Farm Fisheries

The
Warren

40m

B
1
8
6

Drain

Farm
Brook

Kennels

8m

7m

B
1
8
6

ENALS'
YRATS

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Path
Path

Path

Golf Course

Sewage

3
5
m

EER, Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

P
a
th

P
a
th

UA Bdy
UA Bdy

UA Bdy

Farm
Fen

FEN  LANE
Mar Dyke

Cottages

6m

Works

C
L

A
Y

T
Y

E
R

O
A

D

27m

ST MARY'S LANE

Puddle
Dock

B187

Drain

D
ra

in

Clay Tye Hill

Garden
Centre

Corner Farm
Cottage

Farm

A
L

S

P
a
th

Path

G
N

5m

5m

Meadow

Golf
CourseAllot

Gdns

Farm
Corner

20m

Fairplay

Farm

6m

8m

B
1
8
6

7m

E
N

A

A
L

Nursery

Clay Tye Wood

Castle Cottages

Clay Tye
Farm

Warley Grid
Sub Station

Fen Farm

34m

I
N

N
U

FE

Lowlands

House
Claynes

D
ra

in

N L31m

Drain

D
ra

inD
ra

in

Depot

D

E

Nursery

N

Farm

Drain

Farm
Home

Old

S

Drain

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FB

Drain

FEN  LANE

Old England

England

O
C

K

M

N
D

O
N

R
O

A

3
5
m

Cottages

Drain

Farm
Bury

Bungalow
The

Track

Top
Meadow

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Wyngray

'
Y

Kennels

East View
Kennels

R
A

Drain

D
ra

in

FEN LANE

9m

19m

20
m

15m

1
0
m

15m

Lamorna

Bolyngtons2
0
m

1
0
m

30m

T
ra

c
k

Cottages

Golf
Course

M
T

Bury Farm

T
ra

c
k

FEN
LANE

B
1
8
6

B1421

33m

32m

20m

35m

35m

Little Tillingham Hall

Farm
Monks

Farm
Bodiam

Cottage
Tillingham Hall

Farmhouse

U
A

 B
d
y

30m

10m

15m

Seven
Acres

Top

S

A
L

E
N

E

LONDON BOROUGH OF 

HAVERING

BOROUGH OF THURROCK

SUB 
STATION

EER, Boro Const,

40m

Path

5m

Drain

Drain

Drain

FB

T
ra

c
k

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Path
Track

&
 LB

 B
dy

G
L A

sly C
onst

6

6

6

5

5 5

5

5

5

5

4

5

5

5

5

5

5

4

4

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

33

33

33

33

33

33

31

31

31

31

32

32

32

32

32

33

33

5

7 7 7

7 7

7

7

7

8

8

8

8

34

34

33

32

31

30

29

28

27

26

25

23

22

21

21

20

19

19

18

17

16

15

15

14 14

14

13

13

13

13

12 12

12

12

12

11

11

11

10

10

10

9

9

9

5

5

5

5 5

7

10

32

31

9

6

13

33

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.05.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0 5.0

5.0

5.0 5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.05.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0 5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

23.0

23.0

23.0

23.0

23.0

23.0
23.0

23.0

23.0

23.0

23.0

23.0

23.0

23.0
23.0

23.0

23.0

23.0

24.0 24.0

24.0

24.0

24.0

24.0

24.0

24.0

24.0

24.0

24.0

24.0

24.0

24.0

24.0

24.0
24.0

24.0

24.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

27.0

27.0

27.0

27.0

27.0

27.0

27.0

27.0

27.0

27.0

27.0

27.0

27.0

27.0

27.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

26.0

29.0

29.0

29.0
29.0

29.0

29.0

29.0

29.0

29.0

29.0

29.0
29.0

29.0

30.0

30.0

30.0

30.0

30.0

30.0

30.0

30.0

30.0

30.0

30.0

30.0

30.0

30.0

36.0

36.0

36.0

36.0

36.0

36.0

36.0

36.0

36.0

36.0

35.0

35.0

35.0

35.0

35.0

35.0

35.0

35.0

35.0

34.0

34.0

34.0

34.0

34.0

34.0

34.0

34.0

34.0

32.0

32.0

32.0

32.0

32.0
32.0

32.0

32.0

32.0

32.0

32.0

32.0

32.0

33.0

33.0

33.0

33.0

33.0

33.0

33.0

33.0

33.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

22.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

21.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

19.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

18.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

17.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0
16.0

16.0

16.0

16.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0 14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0
14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

14.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0

13.0 13.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0
12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0 12.0

12.0

12.0

12.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

11.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

10.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0 8.0

8.0
8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

8.0

7.0

7.0

7.0 7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0 7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0 7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

5.0

7.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

7.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0 6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0 6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0 6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0 6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0 6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0 6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

37.0

37.0

37.0

37.0

37.0

37.0

37.0

37.0

37.0

31.0

31.0

31.0

31.0

31.0

31.0

31.0

31.0

31.0

31.0

31.0

31.0

31.0

31.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

38.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.0

11.0
11.0

11.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

6.0

6.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

6.0

12.0

9.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

4.0

4.04.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0 4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0 4.0

4.0

4.0

4.04.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

9.0

5.0

5.0

5.0
5.0

5.0

5.0
5.0

5.0

5.0

6.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0 4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

4.0

3.0

3.0

6.0

39.0

39.0

39.0

39.0

39.0

39.0

39.0

39.0

39.0

39.0

39.0

37.0

37.0

37.0

37.0

40.0

40.0

40.0

40.0

40.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

15.0

15.0

15.0

13.0

7.0

7.0

8.0 8.0

8.08.0

7.0

7.0

6.0

8.0

8.0

7.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

6.0

8.0

8.08.0

8.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

12.0

9.0

9.0

10.0

10.0

5.0

5.0

5.05.0

5.0

5.0

6.0

12.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

6.06.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

5.0

5.0

4.0

4.04.0

4.0

3.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

4.0

4.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

6.0

LEGEND

KEY EXISTING HEDGE ROWS, DITCHES, 

PONDS & GREEN BOUNDARIES

EXISTING WOODLANDS / TREES

EXISTING ARABLE 

LAND

M
A

R
 
D

Y
K

E

0 500 1000m

N

PROPOSED BUILD 

ZONES

EHDCC

10 Aerial Site Concept visual 

EHDCC

2.2 - The Indicative Masterplan 

The Indicative site masterplan layout shown here on the left 
illustrates how the site could be developed given the use 
criteria set out above and the technical constraints of the site. 

The site’s build zones have been thoughtfully arranged across 
the site allowing the natural levels and steep gradient of the 
site, that falls away sharply to the east (see drawing on this 
page),  to help minimise the visual impact of the buildings 
by naturally screening them from the surrounding green 
belt farmland, country roads and dwellings. This screening is 
further complimented by the ‘cutting’  of the build plots into 
this gradient and creation of densely planted bunding to the 
perimeter of the site using this cut soil.  Build Zone I & J are the 
most visible due to the existing site levels and as such have 
height restrictions making them more suitable for battery 
storage use. 

The technical constrains of the site including the flood 
zone to the east of the site and the location of the power 
infrastructure, Warley Grid Supply point, to the west also drove 
the design principles of the masterplan resulting in the data 
and energy building uses, that require proximity to the power 
infrastructure, and cannot be located in a flood zone, being 
located to the west of the site. The sites existing overhead 
power lines and gas main also further defined the plots with 
data buildings now being able to be located beneath or on 
top of these utilities. The sites red line boundary extends 
beyond the physical boundary of the site to include the 
underground cabling required to connect Warley to the site. 

The UKPN substation shown at the heart of the masterplan 
has been located here to allow each of the data centre 
building plot’s own on site sub stations to simply connect into 

this central plot without the requirement for long convoluted 
power cable routes. 

The landscape design for the Ecology Park and the perimeter 
landscaping around the site is driven by the ambition to 
create an ecologically diverse patchwork of habitats that 
knit the proposals into the wider ecological landscape that 
surrounds the site. The requirement for these habitats to 
be interconnected has seen the creation of a network of 
biodiversity corridors that dissect the eastern side of the site 
into smaller build zones. 

The horticultural buildings are shown in two different 
potential locations, one to the west where the connection to 
the waste heat from the data centre buildings could easily 
be made, and one to the east where the proposed buildings 
could sit adjacent to the existing cluster of agricultural 
buildings. 

The discovery centre is located adjacent to the Ecology Park to 
the south east of the site.  Located off Fen lane the build zone 
is easily accessible and will be the location of all of the sites 
publicly accessible facilities. 

Given the flexibility allowed for, the build zones within the 
proposed development could accommodate single (large) 
or multiple (smaller) footprint buildings. It is intended that 
there would be some flexibility in the design and construction 
of the proposed development but that a range of design 
criteria will be established prior to obtaining consent. These 
design criteria would be informed by undertaking the 
various technical assessments as part of making the LDO (i.e. 
landscape and visual) and are likely to include; scale, mass, 
height, materials, colour pallet and landscape design.  

P
age 28



EHDCC

13

EHDCC

EER, Boro Const,

Ashley
Farm

White Post

Track

Puddleduck
Farm Fisheries

The
Warren

40
m

B
1
8
6

Farm
Brook

Kennels

7m SYRATS

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Path
Path

Path

Golf Course

Sewage

3
5
m

EER, Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

P
a
th

P
a
th

UA Bdy
UA Bdy

UA Bdy

Farm
Fen

FEN  LANE

Mar Dyke

Cottages

6m

Works

C
L

A
Y

T
Y

E

R
O

A
D

27m

ST MARY'S LANE

Puddle
Dock

B187

Drain

D
ra

in

Garden
Centre

Corner Farm
Cottage

Farm

A
L

S

Path

G
N

5m

5m

Meadow

Golf
CourseAllot

Gdns

Farm
Corner

20m

Fairplay

Farm

6m

B
1
8
6

7m

A

Nursery

Clay Tye Wood

Castle Cottages

Clay Tye
Farm

Warley Grid
Sub Station

Fen Farm

34m

I
N

N
U

FE

Lowlands

House
Claynes

D
ra

in

N L31m

Drain

D
ra

inD
ra

in

Depot

D

Nursery

Drain

Farm
Home

Drain

Drain

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FB

Drain

FEN  LANE

D

O
C

K

M

N
D

O
N

R
O

A

3
5
m

Drain

Farm
Bury

Track

T
ra

c
k

Top
Meadow

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Kennels

East View
Kennels

D
ra

in

Drain

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FEN LANE

9m

19m

20m

15m

1
0
m

15m

Lamorna

Bolyngtons

2
0
m

1
0
m

Path

30m

T
ra

c
k

Track

Cottages

Golf
Course

Bury Farm

T
ra

c
k

FEN
LANE

B
1
8
6

B1421

33m

32m

20m

35m

35m

U
A
 B

d
y

&
 LB

 B
dy

G
L A

sly C
onst

30m

10m

15m

Seven
Acres

Top

E
N

E

L
H

P
G

A
S

L
H

P
G

A
S

L
H

P
G

A
S

L
H

P
G

A
S

L
H

P
G

A
S

NHP
GAS

NHP
GAS

NHP GAS

NHP GAS

N
H

P
G

A
S

N
H

P
G

A
S

N
H

P
G

A
S

N
H

P
G

A
S

L
H

P
G

A
S

L
H

P
G

A
S

L
H

P
G

A
S

L
H

P
G

A
S

L
H

P
G

A
S

O
V
E
R
H
E
A
D
 P

O
W

E
R
 LIN

E

O
V

E
R

H
E

A
D

 P
O

W
E

R
 L

IN
E

OVERHEAD POWER LINE

OVERHEAD POWER LINE

O
V

E
R

H
E

A
D

 P
O

W
E

R
 L

IN
E

WETLAND

WET
WOODLAND

WET
WOODLAND

COPPICED
WOODLAND

BROADLEAF
WOODLAND

BROADLEAF
WOODLAND

MEADOW

EXISTING & ENHANCED
BROADLEAF
WOODLAND

BUILD ZONE - A

BUILD ZONE - B

BUILD ZONE - C

BUILD ZONE - D

BUILD ZONE - E

BUILD ZONE - F

BUILD ZONE - G

BUILD ZONE - H

BUILD ZONE - I

BUILD ZONE - J

BUILD ZONE - K

WETLAND
DISCOVERY

CENTRE

MEADOW

BUNDING

BUNDING

BUNDING

B
U

N
D

IN
G

BUNDING

BUNDING

B
U

N
D

IN
G

B
U

N
D

IN
G

BUNDING

B
U

N
D

IN
G

MOUND

MOUND

MOUND

MOUND

MOUND

MOUND

WETLAND

WETLAND

P01 2023-12-XX LDO Planning Issue AT PSS

Rev. Date Descript ion Revised by Checked by

NOTES

1. All dimensions in millimetres unless otherwise shown.
2. All levels in metres above Ordinance Datum (mAOD) unless otherwise shown.
3. All dimensions to be checked on site and any discrepancies reported to Employer
   before pricing / work starts.
4. Any ambiguities or discrepancies within this drawing and any other information given elsewhere 
     must be reported to Camlins and the Employer for clarification before pricing work proceeds.
5. All drawings to be read in conjunction with other Camlins drawings and specification 
   information as appropriate.
6. Refer to relevant Engineer's and Architect's information as appropriate for confirmation of all 
    engineering and architectural details.
7. All works to be carried out in accordance with the latest British Standards and appropriate codes 
    of practice as a minimum.

KEY

Site Boundary

N

DRAFT
New Zealand House, Abbey Foregate,

Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 6FD
01743 290 779

www.camlins.com

Havering Wildlife Project

General Arrangement Plan

Drawing Number

Status

Reef Group

Planning

SY741-000-0001
Revision

P01
Scale

1:3000@A1
Date

22.01.2024

Drawn by

AT
Checked by

AN

20m0m 200m80m 150m100m60m40m

Scale  1:3000

20m 250m

Site Boundary

Plot Boundaries

Development Boundary

Information / Interpretation Boards

Site Access Point

Picnic Area

Facilities

Bird / Wildlife Hide 

Play Area

Wildlife Pond

Proposed Beaver Sanctuary (Future Aim)

Viewpoint

EER, Boro Const,

Ashley
Farm

White Post

Track

Puddleduck
Farm Fisheries

The
Warren

40
m

B
1
8
6

Farm
Brook

Kennels

7m SYRATS

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Path
Path

Path

Golf Course

Sewage

3
5
m

EER, Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

P
a
th

P
a
th

UA Bdy
UA Bdy

UA Bdy

Farm
Fen

FEN  LANE

Mar Dyke

Cottages

6m

Works

C
L

A
Y

T
Y

E

R
O

A
D

27m

ST MARY'S LANE

Puddle
Dock

B187

Drain

D
ra

in

Garden
Centre

Corner Farm
Cottage

Farm

A
L

S

Path

G
N

5m

5m

Meadow

Golf
CourseAllot

Gdns

Farm
Corner

20m

Fairplay

Farm

6m

B
1
8
6

7m

A

Nursery

Clay Tye Wood

Castle Cottages

Clay Tye
Farm

Warley Grid
Sub Station

Fen Farm

34m

I
N

N
U

FE

Lowlands

House
Claynes

D
ra

in

N L31m

Drain

D
ra

inD
ra

in

Depot

D

Nursery

Drain

Farm
Home

Drain

Drain

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FB

Drain

FEN  LANE

D

O
C

K

M

N
D

O
N

R
O

A

3
5
m

Drain

Farm
Bury

Track

T
ra

c
k

Top
Meadow

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Kennels

East View
Kennels

D
ra

in

Drain

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FEN LANE

9m

19m

20m

15m

1
0
m

15m

Lamorna

Bolyngtons

2
0
m

1
0
m

Path

30m

T
ra

c
k

Track

Cottages

Golf
Course

Bury Farm

T
ra

c
k

FEN
LANE

B
1
8
6

B1421

33m

32m

20m

35m

35m

U
A
 B

d
y

&
 LB

 B
dy

G
L A

sly C
onst

30m

10m

15m

Seven
Acres

Top

E
N

E

g3a

g3a

g3a

g3a

g3a

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

w1f

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

h2a

w1d

w1d

w1d

w1d

w1d

w1d

w1d

f2f
55

f2d

f2d

h3h
210

h3h
210

h2a

h2a

f2f
55

f2f
55

f2f
55

f2f
55

f2f
55

f2d

f2d

f2d

f2f
55

h2a

g3a

g3a

h2a

h2a

h2a
h2a

h2a

w1d
g3a

g3a

g3a

WETLAND

WET
WOODLAND

WET
WOODLAND

COPPICED
WOODLAND

BROADLEAF
WOODLAND

BROADLEAF
WOODLAND

MEADOW

EXISTING & ENHANCED
BROADLEAF
WOODLAND

BUILD ZONE - A

BUILD ZONE - B

BUILD ZONE - C

BUILD ZONE - D

BUILD ZONE - E

BUILD ZONE - F

BUILD ZONE - G

BUILD ZONE - H

BUILD ZONE - I

BUILD ZONE - J

BUILD ZONE - K

WETLAND
DISCOVERY

CENTRE

MEADOW

BUNDING

BUNDING

BUNDING

B
U

N
D

IN
G

BUNDING

BUNDING

B
U

N
D

IN
G

B
U

N
D

IN
G

BUNDING

B
U

N
D

IN
G

MOUND

MOUND

MOUND

MOUND

MOUND

MOUND

WETLAND

WETLAND

P01 2023-12-XX LDO Planning Issue AT PSS

Rev. Date Descript ion Revised by Checked by

NOTES

1. All dimensions in millimetres unless otherwise shown.
2. All levels in metres above Ordinance Datum (mAOD) unless otherwise shown.
3. All dimensions to be checked on site and any discrepancies reported to Employer
   before pricing / work starts.
4. Any ambiguities or discrepancies within this drawing and any other information given elsewhere 
     must be reported to Camlins and the Employer for clarification before pricing work proceeds.
5. All drawings to be read in conjunction with other Camlins drawings and specification 
   information as appropriate.
6. Refer to relevant Engineer's and Architect's information as appropriate for confirmation of all 
    engineering and architectural details.
7. All works to be carried out in accordance with the latest British Standards and appropriate codes 
    of practice as a minimum.

KEY

N

DRAFT
New Zealand House, Abbey Foregate,

Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 6FD
01743 290 779

www.camlins.com

Havering Wildlife Project

General Arrangement Plan - Habitat Strategy

Drawing Number

Status

Reef Group

Planning

SY741-000-0002
Revision

P01
Scale

1:3000@A1
Date

22.01.2024

Drawn by

AT
Checked by

AN

20m0m 200m80m 150m100m60m40m

Scale  1:3000

20m 250m

KEY

Site Boundary

Build Zones / Plot Boundaries
*Note: Habitat within Build Zones / Plot Boundaries to be temporary condition 
pending further detailed design. Total Area of Build Zones = 169 Acres

Development Boundary

Broadleaf Woodland
Level 4 Habitat Classification: w1f - Lowland Mixed Deciduous Woodland
*Priority Habitat
Total Area: 32.7 ha

Coppiced Woodland
Level 4 Habitat Classification: h3h - Mixed Scrub 
(V2.0 code: 210 - Coppice)
Total Area: 6.5 ha

HABITAT TYPE

Wet Woodland
Level 4 Habitat Classification: w1d - Wet Woodland
*Priority Habitat
Total Area: 23.2 ha

Existing / Retained Broadleaf Woodland
Level 4 Habitat Classification: w1f - Lowland Mixed Deciduous Woodland
*Priority Habitat
Total Area: 0.8 ha

Existing Retained & New Mixed Native Hedgerows
Level 4 Habitat Classification: h2a - Native Hedgerow
*Priority Habitat
Total Area: 19 Linear Kilometers

Meadow
Level 4 Habitat Classification: g3a - Lowland Hay Meadow
*Priority Habitat
Total Area: 13 ha

Seasonally Wet Grassland
Level 4 Habitat Classification: f2f - Wetlands 
(V2.0 code: 55 - Floodplain / Wetland Mosaic)
Total Area: 37.2 ha

Permanent Water Body
Level 4 Habitat Classification: f2d - Aquatic Marginal Vegetation
Total Area: 5 ha

EER, Boro Const,

Ashley
Farm

White Post

Track

Puddleduck
Farm Fisheries

The
Warren

40
m

B
1
8
6

Farm
Brook

Kennels

7m SYRATS

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Path
Path

Path

Golf Course

Sewage

3
5
m

EER, Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

P
a
th

P
a
th

UA Bdy
UA Bdy

UA Bdy

Farm
Fen

FEN  LANE

Mar Dyke

Cottages

6m

Works

C
L

A
Y

T
Y

E

R
O

A
D

27m

ST MARY'S LANE

Puddle
Dock

B187

Drain

D
ra

in

Garden
Centre

Corner Farm
Cottage

Farm

A
L

S

Path

G
N

5m

5m

Meadow

Golf
CourseAllot

Gdns

Farm
Corner

20m

Fairplay

Farm

6m

B
1
8
6

7m

A

Nursery

Clay Tye Wood

Castle Cottages

Clay Tye
Farm

Warley Grid
Sub Station

Fen Farm

34m

I
N

N
U

FE

Lowlands

House
Claynes

D
ra

in

N L31m

Drain

D
ra

inD
ra

in

Depot

D

Nursery

Drain

Farm
Home

Drain

Drain

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FB

Drain

FEN  LANE

D

O
C

K

M

N
D

O
N

R
O

A

3
5
m

Drain

Farm
Bury

Track

T
ra

c
k

Top
Meadow

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Kennels

East View
Kennels

D
ra

in

Drain

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FEN LANE

9m

19m

20m

15m

1
0
m

15m

Lamorna

Bolyngtons

2
0
m

1
0
m

Path

30m

T
ra

c
k

Track

Cottages

Golf
Course

Bury Farm

T
ra

c
k

FEN
LANE

B
1
8
6

B1421

33m

32m

20m

35m

35m

U
A
 B

d
y

&
 LB

 B
dy

G
L A

sly C
onst

30m

10m

15m

Seven
Acres

Top

E
N

E

WETLAND

WET
WOODLAND

WET
WOODLAND

COPPICED
WOODLAND

BROADLEAF
WOODLAND

BROADLEAF
WOODLAND

MEADOW

EXISTING & ENHANCED
BROADLEAF
WOODLAND

BUILD ZONE - A

BUILD ZONE - B

BUILD ZONE - C

BUILD ZONE - D

BUILD ZONE - E

BUILD ZONE - F

BUILD ZONE - G

BUILD ZONE - H

BUILD ZONE - I

BUILD ZONE - J

BUILD ZONE - K

WETLAND
DISCOVERY

CENTRE

MEADOW

BUNDING

BUNDING

BUNDING

B
U

N
D

IN
G

BUNDING

BUNDING

B
U

N
D

IN
G

B
U

N
D

IN
G

BUNDING

B
U

N
D

IN
G

MOUND

MOUND

MOUND

MOUND

MOUND

MOUND

WETLAND

WETLAND

P01 2023-12-XX LDO Planning Issue AT PSS

Rev. Date Descript ion Revised by Checked by

NOTES

1. All dimensions in millimetres unless otherwise shown.
2. All levels in metres above Ordinance Datum (mAOD) unless otherwise shown.
3. All dimensions to be checked on site and any discrepancies reported to Employer
   before pricing / work starts.
4. Any ambiguities or discrepancies within this drawing and any other information given elsewhere 
     must be reported to Camlins and the Employer for clarification before pricing work proceeds.
5. All drawings to be read in conjunction with other Camlins drawings and specification 
   information as appropriate.
6. Refer to relevant Engineer's and Architect's information as appropriate for confirmation of all 
    engineering and architectural details.
7. All works to be carried out in accordance with the latest British Standards and appropriate codes 
    of practice as a minimum.

KEY

Site Boundary

Plot Boundaries

N

Development Boundary

DRAFT
New Zealand House, Abbey Foregate,

Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 6FD
01743 290 779

www.camlins.com

Havering Wildlife Project

General Arrangement Plan - Tree Planting Strategy

Drawing Number

Status

Reef Group

Planning

SY741-000-0003
Revision

P01
Scale

1:3000@A1
Date

22.01.2024

Drawn by

AT
Checked by

AN

20m0m 200m80m 150m100m60m40m

Scale  1:3000

20m 250m

PROPOSED TREE PLANTING

BROADLEAF WOODLAND 
PROPOSED TREES & UNDERSTOREY

Quercus robur
Populus tremula
Betula pendula 
Betula pubescens 
Fraxinus excelsior 
Fagus sylvatica
Corylus avellana
Malus sylvestris
Cornus sanguinea
Prunus avium
Crataegus monogyna
Euonymus europaeus
Viburnum opulus

English Oak
Aspen
Silver Birch
Downy Birch
Ash
Beech
Hazel
Crab Apple
DogwooD
Wild Cherry
Hawthorn
Spindle
Guelder Rose

WET WOODLAND 
PROPOSED TREES & UNDERSTOREY

Alnus glutinosa
Betula pubescens
Salix pentandra
Salix alba
Salix fragilis
Salix cinerea spp. oleifolia
Quercus petraea
Prunus spinosa
Malus sylvestris
Viburnum lantana 
Viburnum opulus 
Carpinus betulus

Alder
Downy Birch
Bay Willow
White Willow
Crack Willow
Grey Willow
Sessile Oak
Balckthorn
Crab Apple
Wayfaring Tree
Guelder Rose
Hornbeam

MEADOW / GRASSLAND
PROPOSED TREES

Quercus robur
Fagus sylvatica
Acer campestre
Alnus glutinosa

Oak
Beech
Field Maple
Alder

COPPICE WOODLAND 
PROPOSED TREES

Alnus glutinosa
Betula pubescens
Corylus avellana 
Cornus sanguinea
Salix caprea
Salix alba

Alder
Downy Birch
Hazel
Dogwood
Goat Willow
White Willow

BUFFER WOODLAND 
PROPOSED TREES & UNDERSTOREY

Populus tremula
Populus nigra
Populus alba
Betula pendula 
Pinus sylvestris
Tilia cordata
Prunus spinosa
Ilex aquifolium
Cornus sanguinea
Hedera helix
Cytisus scoparius
Rubus fruticosus
Rosa canina
Lonicera periclymenum
Prunus avium

Aspen
Black Poplar
White Poplar
Silver Birch
Scotts Pine
Small-Leaved Lime
Balckthorn
Holly
Dogwood
Ivy
Broom
Bramble
Dogrose
Honeysuckle
Wild Cherry

NOTE:

This is a strategic level plan illustarting the types of habitat to be created on site.

Detailed planting lists including specification and quantity of trees to be developed in 

co-ordination with Ecologist at later stages of design development.

EHDCC

12 Aerial Site Concept visual 

EHDCC

2.2 - The Indicative Masterplan 

2.2.1 - Landscape Design - An amenity for the People of Havering  

The landscape design plays a critical role in the project, creating a network of interconnecting 
green biodiverse ecology corridors that weave in-between the projects develop-able build 
zones, connecting the sites extensive new woodlands, wetlands and meadows.  

The key focus of the landscape is to create a mosaic of habitat typologies that boost local 
biodiversity and encourage human engagement with the newly created accessible green 
spaces. The landscape design also plays a critical role in managing water sustainably on site 
and enhancing carbon sequestration through improving soil quality on site. 

The proposed design will create this biodiverse mosaic through the creation of new woodland 
and grassland typologies that connect and enhance existing and hedgerow and ditch 
corridors, please see drawings on the right. 

The eastern area of the site (The Ecology Park) will feature wetlands within the existing flood 
plain with extensive ditch networks that will help to manage flooding through water retention. 
A woodland corridor will be established along the eastern boundary further enhancing water 
management whilst improving soil quality and creating a buffer to the site. 

To the south-west corner of the site, deer fencing is proposed to protect an area of 9 ha in 
order to allow the landscape to mature undisturbed from the local deer herds. The long-term 
is ambition is for this area of landscape to mature in order to create suitable Beaver habitat so 
that it may be considered for future reintroduction of Beaver’s to the local landscape, which has 
the potential for significant positive impacts upon the local biodiversity.

Extensive broad leaf woodland will wrap around the development zone, aiding to screen 
the site from the surrounding area whilst also stabilising steep banks to the West of the site, 
reducing water run off and improving soil quality. Meadows and glades will also break up areas 
of the woodland to the west which will add another layer of diversity to the habitat types.

P
age 29



EHDCC

15

EHDCCEHDCC

14 15Aerial Site Concept visual Aerial Site Concept visual 

EHDCC

2.2 - The Indicative Masterplan 

2.2.2 - Site Access and Connectivity 

The sites access strategy has been carefully considered to 
ensure the site is both fully accessible to the public, via a 
network of cycle and pedestrian routes but also careful 
considered to ensure the sites neighbours are not adversely 
impacted by journeys to and from the site. 

The drawing on this page shows how these routes across the 
site connect into the wider landscape and across the site. 

The main entrance to the proposed development would be 
via a new site access road from Fen Lane and would include 
management and security accommodation together with 
security check point and gates. The main entrance area will 
also include a personnel and visitor car park and cycle parking 
provision.

2.2 - The Indicative Masterplan 

2.2.3 - Site Land Use 

As noted above the LDO process creates a flexible set of 
parameter plans and land use drawings consenting different 
uses on different build zones. The site is divided into a number 
of different build zones that will be controlled by a number 
of different parameters and design constraints that will be 
concluded once the Environmental Impact Assessment work 
is progressed further. 

The indicative masterplan as shown divides the existing 215 
Hectares, 532.7 acres site into 11 build zones with a range of 
different uses as noted below. Over half of the site will be new 
green landscaping and remain undeveloped as shown on the 
drawing here. 

Development Area - 69.8 Hectares /172.6 Acres 

Landscape Area - 121 Hectares / 300.1 Acres 

Foundry London, Havering

North Ockendon, Upminster
51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDORev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size

A4

date

29/01/2024

scale

1:15000
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS

DRAWING

COPYRIGHT REEFGROUP

USE LATEST

REVISION

CHECK ALL

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

4

revision

LDO PLAN 4 LDO

ACCESS AND

CIRCULATION PLAN

-

GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

10m

Ashley
Farm

White Post

Track

Puddleduck
Farm Fisheries

The
Warren

40m

B
1
8
6

Drain

Farm
Brook

Kennels

8m

7m

B
1
8
6

ENALS'
YRATS

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Path
Path

Path

Golf Course

Sewage

3
5
m

EER, Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

P
a
th

P
a
th

UA Bdy
UA Bdy

UA Bdy

Farm
Fen

FEN  LANE
Mar Dyke

Cottages

6m

Works

C
L

A
Y

T
Y

E
R

O
A

D

27m

ST MARY'S LANE

Puddle
Dock

B187

Drain

D
ra

in

Clay Tye Hill

Garden
Centre

Corner Farm
Cottage

Farm

A
L

S

P
a
th

Path

G
N

5m

5m

Meadow

Golf
CourseAllot

Gdns

Farm
Corner

20m

Fairplay

Farm

6m

8m

B
1
8
6

7m

E
N

A

A
L

Nursery

Clay Tye Wood

Castle Cottages

Clay Tye
Farm

Warley Grid
Sub Station

Fen Farm

34m

I
N

N
U

FE

Lowlands

House
Claynes

D
ra

in

N L31m

Drain

D
ra

inD
ra

in

Depot

D

E

Nursery

N

Farm

Drain

Farm
Home

Old

S

Drain

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FB

Drain

FEN  LANE

Old England

England

O
C

K

M

N
D

O
N

R
O

A

3
5
m

Cottages

Drain

Farm
Bury

Bungalow
The

Track

Top
Meadow

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Wyngray

'
Y

Kennels

East View
Kennels

R
A

Drain

D
ra

in

FEN LANE

9m

19m

20
m

15m

1
0
m

15m

Lamorna

Bolyngtons2
0
m

1
0
m

30m

T
ra

c
k

Cottages

Golf
Course

M
T

Bury Farm

T
ra

c
k

FEN
LANE

B
1
8
6

B1421

33m

32m

20m

35m

35m

Little Tillingham Hall

Farm
Monks

Farm
Bodiam

Cottage
Tillingham Hall

Farmhouse

U
A

 B
d
y

30m

10m

15m

Seven
Acres

Top

S

A
L

E
N

E

LONDON BOROUGH OF

HAVERING

BOROUGH OF THURROCK

SUB
STATION

EER, Boro Const,

40m

Sewage

FEN  LANE

Works

Corner Farm
Cottage

Path

5m

20m

Drain

Farm
Home

Drain

Drain

FB

FEN  LANE

T
ra

c
k

D
ra

in

Drain

D
ra

in

LANE

9m

19m

1
0
m

15m

Bolyngtons

2
0
m

Path
Track

32m

&
 LB

 B
dy

G
L A

sly C
onst

BURY FARM
WALK

NORTH
OCKENDON

WALK

THAMES
CHASE

FOREST
LINK WETLAND

DISCOVERY
ZONE

WEST
LOOKOUT

WOODLAND

LONDON

FREEPORT

NATURE

RESERVE

FEN LANE
MAIN LONDON

DATA FREEPORT

ENTRANCE

0 500 1000m

N

BUILD ZONES

PROPOSED STRATEGIC ACCESS

ROADS

PROPOSED SWALES (INDICATIVE)

LEGEND

STRATEGIC LANDSCAPING ZONES

PONDS (EXISTING AND PROPOSED)

PRIMARY STRATEGIC FOOTWAY / CYCLEPATH

(2M + 3M WIDE)

SECONDARY PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

(INDICATIVE LOCATIONS)

VEHICLE ACCESS

PEDESTRIAN / CYCLE ACCESS

SECONDARY ACCESS ROADS

(INDICATIVE LOCATIONS)

MAIN LONDON DATA FREEPORT

ENTRANCE AND SECURITY

CHECKPOINT WITH CAR PARKING

LOCATION FOR WETLAND DISCOVERY

CENTRE WITH INDICATED WALKING

DISTANCE (1 MIN)
PROPOSED SECURITY FENCE LINE

WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE

PEDESTRIAN ROUTES

Foundry London, Havering 

North Ockendon, Upminster   

 

51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDO  Rev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size 

A4   

date 

21/03/2024

scale

1:15000    
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS 

DRAWING 

COPYRIGHT DIGITAL REEF

USE LATEST 

REVISION

CHECK ALL 

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

2  

revision

LDO PLAN 2 LDO LAND 

USE PLAN       -

GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

10m

Ashley
Farm

White Post

Track

Puddleduck
Farm Fisheries

The
Warren

40m

B
1
8
6

Drain

Farm
Brook

Kennels

8m

7m

B
1
8
6

ENALS'
YRATS

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Path
Path

Path

Golf Course

Sewage

3
5
m

EER, Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

P
a
th

P
a
th

UA Bdy
UA Bdy

UA Bdy

Farm
Fen

FEN  LANE
Mar Dyke

Cottages

6m

Works

C
L

A
Y

T
Y

E
R

O
A

D

27m

ST MARY'S LANE

Puddle
Dock

B187

Drain

D
ra

in

Clay Tye Hill

Garden
Centre

Corner Farm
Cottage

Farm

A
L

S

P
a
th

Path

G
N

5m

5m

Meadow

Golf
CourseAllot

Gdns

Farm
Corner

20m

Fairplay

Farm

6m

8m

B
1
8
6

7m

E
N

A

A
L

Nursery

Clay Tye Wood

Castle Cottages

Clay Tye
Farm

Warley Grid
Sub Station

Fen Farm

34m

I
N

N
U

FE

Lowlands

House
Claynes

D
ra

in

N L31m

Drain

D
ra

inD
ra

in

Depot

D

E

Nursery

N

Farm

Drain

Farm
Home

Old

S

Drain

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FB

Drain

FEN  LANE

Old England

England

O
C

K

M

N
D

O
N

R
O

A

3
5
m

Cottages

Drain

Farm
Bury

Bungalow
The

Track

Top
Meadow

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Wyngray

'
Y

Kennels

East View
Kennels

R
A

Drain

D
ra

in

FEN LANE

9m

19m

20
m

15m

1
0
m

15m

Lamorna

Bolyngtons2
0
m

1
0
m

30m

T
ra

c
k

Cottages

Golf
Course

M
T

Bury Farm

T
ra

c
k

FEN
LANE

B
1
8
6

B1421

33m

32m

20m

35m

35m

Little Tillingham Hall

Farm
Monks

Farm
Bodiam

Cottage
Tillingham Hall

Farmhouse

U
A

 B
d
y

30m

10m

15m

Seven
Acres

Top

S

A
L

E
N

E

LONDON BOROUGH OF 

HAVERING

BOROUGH OF THURROCK

SUB 
STATION

EER, Boro Const,

40m

Sewage

FEN  LANE

Works

Corner Farm
Cottage

Path

5m

20m

Drain

Farm
Home

Drain

Drain

FB

FEN  LANE

T
ra

c
k

D
ra

in

Drain

D
ra

in

LANE

9m

19m

1
0
m

15m

Bolyngtons

2
0
m

Path
Track

32m

&
 LB

 B
dy

G
L A

sly C
onst

BUILD ZONE A

BUILD ZONE B

BUILD ZONE C

BUILD ZONE F

BUILD ZONE G

BUILD ZONE H

BUILD ZONE D

BUILD ZONE E

BUILD ZONE K

BUILD ZONE I

BUILD ZONE J

-Data Centres (Ref 2)

-Battery Storage (Ref 4b)

-Electrical Infrastructure (Ref 6)

-Data Centres (Ref 2)

-Indoor Horticulture (Ref 3)

-Hydrogen Fuel Cell Energy Generation (Ref 4a)

-Battery Storage (Ref 4b)

-District Heating Energy Centre (Ref 4c)

-Electrical Infrastructure (Ref 6)

-Data Centres (Ref 2)

-Hydrogen Fuel Cell Energy Generation (Ref 4a)

-Battery Storage (Ref 4b)

-District Heating Energy Centre (Ref 4c)

-Electrical Infrastructure (Ref 6)

-Battery Storage (Ref 4b)

-Electrical Infrastructure (Ref 6)

-Indoor Horticulture (Ref 3)

-District Heating Energy Centre (Ref 4c)

-Visitors Centre (Ref 5)

-Electrical Infrastructure (Ref 6)

LEGEND

Development Area

0 500 1000m

N

69.8 HECTARES

172.6 ACRES

DEVELOPMENT 

AREA:

STRATEGIC 

LANDSCAPE 

TARGET AREA:

121.5 HECTARES

300.1 ACRES

Strategic Landscape Target Area

215.6 HECTARES

532.7 ACRES

REDLINE

AREA:

Foundry London, Havering

North Ockendon, Upminster
51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDORev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size

A4

date

29/01/2024

scale

1:15000
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS

DRAWING

COPYRIGHT REEFGROUP

USE LATEST

REVISION

CHECK ALL

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

4

revision

LDO PLAN 4 LDO

ACCESS AND

CIRCULATION PLAN

-

GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

10m

Ashley
Farm

White Post

Track

Puddleduck
Farm Fisheries

The
Warren

40m

B
1
8
6

Drain

Farm
Brook

Kennels

8m

7m

B
1
8
6

ENALS'
YRATS

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Path
Path

Path

Golf Course

Sewage

3
5
m

EER, Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

P
a
th

P
a
th

UA Bdy
UA Bdy

UA Bdy

Farm
Fen

FEN  LANE
Mar Dyke

Cottages

6m

Works

C
L

A
Y

T
Y

E
R

O
A

D

27m

ST MARY'S LANE

Puddle
Dock

B187

Drain

D
ra

in

Clay Tye Hill

Garden
Centre

Corner Farm
Cottage

Farm

A
L

S

P
a
th

Path

G
N

5m

5m

Meadow

Golf
CourseAllot

Gdns

Farm
Corner

20m

Fairplay

Farm

6m

8m

B
1
8
6

7m

E
N

A

A
L

Nursery

Clay Tye Wood

Castle Cottages

Clay Tye
Farm

Warley Grid
Sub Station

Fen Farm

34m

I
N

N
U

FE

Lowlands

House
Claynes

D
ra

in

N L31m

Drain

D
ra

inD
ra

in

Depot

D

E

Nursery

N

Farm

Drain

Farm
Home

Old

S

Drain

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FB

Drain

FEN  LANE

Old England

England

O
C

K

M

N
D

O
N

R
O

A

3
5
m

Cottages

Drain

Farm
Bury

Bungalow
The

Track

Top
Meadow

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Wyngray

'
Y

Kennels

East View
Kennels

R
A

Drain

D
ra

in

FEN LANE

9m

19m

20
m

15m

1
0
m

15m

Lamorna

Bolyngtons2
0
m

1
0
m

30m

T
ra

c
k

Cottages

Golf
Course

M
T

Bury Farm

T
ra

c
k

FEN
LANE

B
1
8
6

B1421

33m

32m

20m

35m

35m

Little Tillingham Hall

Farm
Monks

Farm
Bodiam

Cottage
Tillingham Hall

Farmhouse

U
A

 B
d
y

30m

10m

15m

Seven
Acres

Top

S

A
L

E
N

E

LONDON BOROUGH OF

HAVERING

BOROUGH OF THURROCK

SUB
STATION

EER, Boro Const,

40m

Sewage

FEN  LANE

Works

Corner Farm
Cottage

Path

5m

20m

Drain

Farm
Home

Drain

Drain

FB

FEN  LANE

T
ra

c
k

D
ra

in

Drain

D
ra

in

LANE

9m

19m

1
0
m

15m

Bolyngtons

2
0
m

Path
Track

32m

&
 LB

 B
dy

G
L A

sly C
onst

BURY FARM
WALK

NORTH
OCKENDON

WALK

THAMES
CHASE

FOREST
LINK WETLAND

DISCOVERY
ZONE

WEST
LOOKOUT

WOODLAND

LONDON

FREEPORT

NATURE

RESERVE

FEN LANE
MAIN LONDON

DATA FREEPORT

ENTRANCE

0 500 1000m

N

BUILD ZONES

PROPOSED STRATEGIC ACCESS

ROADS

PROPOSED SWALES (INDICATIVE)

LEGEND

STRATEGIC LANDSCAPING ZONES

PONDS (EXISTING AND PROPOSED)

PRIMARY STRATEGIC FOOTWAY / CYCLEPATH

(2M + 3M WIDE)

SECONDARY PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

(INDICATIVE LOCATIONS)

VEHICLE ACCESS

PEDESTRIAN / CYCLE ACCESS

SECONDARY ACCESS ROADS

(INDICATIVE LOCATIONS)

MAIN LONDON DATA FREEPORT

ENTRANCE AND SECURITY

CHECKPOINT WITH CAR PARKING

LOCATION FOR WETLAND DISCOVERY

CENTRE WITH INDICATED WALKING

DISTANCE (1 MIN)
PROPOSED SECURITY FENCE LINE

WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE

PEDESTRIAN ROUTES

Foundry London, Havering 

North Ockendon, Upminster   

 

51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDO  Rev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size 

A4   

date 

21/03/2024

scale

1:15000    
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS 

DRAWING 

COPYRIGHT DIGITAL REEF

USE LATEST 

REVISION

CHECK ALL 

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

2  

revision

LDO PLAN 2 LDO LAND 

USE PLAN       -

GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

10m

Ashley
Farm

White Post

Track

Puddleduck
Farm Fisheries

The
Warren

40m

B
1
8
6

Drain

Farm
Brook

Kennels

8m

7m

B
1
8
6

ENALS'
YRATS

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Path
Path

Path

Golf Course

Sewage

3
5
m

EER, Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

P
a
th

P
a
th

UA Bdy
UA Bdy

UA Bdy

Farm
Fen

FEN  LANE
Mar Dyke

Cottages

6m

Works

C
L

A
Y

T
Y

E
R

O
A

D

27m

ST MARY'S LANE

Puddle
Dock

B187

Drain

D
ra

in

Clay Tye Hill

Garden
Centre

Corner Farm
Cottage

Farm

A
L

S

P
a
th

Path

G
N

5m

5m

Meadow

Golf
CourseAllot

Gdns

Farm
Corner

20m

Fairplay

Farm

6m

8m

B
1
8
6

7m

E
N

A

A
L

Nursery

Clay Tye Wood

Castle Cottages

Clay Tye
Farm

Warley Grid
Sub Station

Fen Farm

34m

I
N

N
U

FE

Lowlands

House
Claynes

D
ra

in

N L31m

Drain

D
ra

inD
ra

in

Depot

D

E

Nursery

N

Farm

Drain

Farm
Home

Old

S

Drain

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FB

Drain

FEN  LANE

Old England

England

O
C

K

M

N
D

O
N

R
O

A

3
5
m

Cottages

Drain

Farm
Bury

Bungalow
The

Track

Top
Meadow

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Wyngray

'
Y

Kennels

East View
Kennels

R
A

Drain

D
ra

in

FEN LANE

9m

19m

20
m

15m

1
0
m

15m

Lamorna

Bolyngtons2
0
m

1
0
m

30m

T
ra

c
k

Cottages

Golf
Course

M
T

Bury Farm

T
ra

c
k

FEN
LANE

B
1
8
6

B1421

33m

32m

20m

35m

35m

Little Tillingham Hall

Farm
Monks

Farm
Bodiam

Cottage
Tillingham Hall

Farmhouse

U
A

 B
d
y

30m

10m

15m

Seven
Acres

Top

S

A
L

E
N

E

LONDON BOROUGH OF 

HAVERING

BOROUGH OF THURROCK

SUB 
STATION

EER, Boro Const,

40m

Sewage

FEN  LANE

Works

Corner Farm
Cottage

Path

5m

20m

Drain

Farm
Home

Drain

Drain

FB

FEN  LANE

T
ra

c
k

D
ra

in

Drain

D
ra

in

LANE

9m

19m

1
0
m

15m

Bolyngtons

2
0
m

Path
Track

32m

&
 LB

 B
dy

G
L A

sly C
onst

BUILD ZONE A

BUILD ZONE B

BUILD ZONE C

BUILD ZONE F

BUILD ZONE G

BUILD ZONE H

BUILD ZONE D

BUILD ZONE E

BUILD ZONE K

BUILD ZONE I

BUILD ZONE J

-Data Centres (Ref 2)

-Battery Storage (Ref 4b)

-Electrical Infrastructure (Ref 6)

-Data Centres (Ref 2)

-Indoor Horticulture (Ref 3)

-Hydrogen Fuel Cell Energy Generation (Ref 4a)

-Battery Storage (Ref 4b)

-District Heating Energy Centre (Ref 4c)

-Electrical Infrastructure (Ref 6)

-Data Centres (Ref 2)

-Hydrogen Fuel Cell Energy Generation (Ref 4a)

-Battery Storage (Ref 4b)

-District Heating Energy Centre (Ref 4c)

-Electrical Infrastructure (Ref 6)

-Battery Storage (Ref 4b)

-Electrical Infrastructure (Ref 6)

-Indoor Horticulture (Ref 3)

-District Heating Energy Centre (Ref 4c)

-Visitors Centre (Ref 5)

-Electrical Infrastructure (Ref 6)

LEGEND

Development Area

0 500 1000m

N

69.8 HECTARES

172.6 ACRES

DEVELOPMENT 

AREA:

STRATEGIC 

LANDSCAPE 

TARGET AREA:

121.5 HECTARES

300.1 ACRES

Strategic Landscape Target Area

215.6 HECTARES

532.7 ACRES

REDLINE

AREA:

P
age 30



EHDCC

17

EHDCCEHDCC

16 17Aerial Site Concept visual Aerial Site Concept visual 

EHDCC

2.2 - The Indicative Masterplan 

2.2.4 - Building Heights

The build zones are all controlled by a number of constraints 
to mitigate impact on the surrounding Environment. The 
impact of the development on local visual amenity has 
been a key design consideration and resulted in a stepped 
maximum building height strategy that uses the sites 
existing topography to help screen the development from its 
surrounding context. 

As shown in the drawing on this page the build zone heights 
are reduced in the areas where the sites existing topography 
make them more visible. The most exposed, visible portion 
of the site has the lowest restricted maximum building 
height of 8m with this increasing in the heart of the site to 
21m where the sites natural topography and the proposed 
bunding allows for higher buildings to be screened from the 
surrounding context. 

This strategy is also supplemented by the use of woodland 
planting and bunding to screen the buildings further.  The 
ongoing Landscape Visual Impact Assessment work being 
carried out as part of the  Environmental Impact Assessment 
may shape, carve and reduce these building heights further 
resulting in additional variation within the build zones and 
across the masterplan. 

2.2 - The Indicative Masterplan 

2.2.4 - Building Heights

This indicative site section further illustrates how the 
topography and landscape levels strategy work hand in 
hand to help screen the development from the surrounding 
landscape. 

The proposed maximum building roof height would be 21 
m above the finished floor level excluding roof top plant and 
exhaust flues which would extend no more than 5 m above 
the 21 m maximum building height.

The section drawing below illustrates the levels in a flatter 
part of the site where the existing topography is less 
forgiving so the bunding appears lower than it will elsewhere. 
Further section drawings are being prepared for the LDO 
documentation and verified views are being undertaken as 
part of the EIA work.  

Foundry London, Havering

North Ockendon, Upminster
51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDORev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size

A4

date

29/01/2024

scale

1:15000
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS

DRAWING

COPYRIGHT REEFGROUP

USE LATEST

REVISION

CHECK ALL

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

3

revision

LDO PLAN 3 LDO

BUILDING HEIGHTS

PLAN

-

GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

10m

Ashley
Farm

White Post

Track

Puddleduck
Farm Fisheries

The
Warren

40m

B
1
8
6

Drain

Farm
Brook

Kennels

8m

7m

B
1
8
6

ENALS'
YRATS

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Path
Path

Path

Golf Course

Sewage

3
5
m

EER, Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

P
a
th

P
a
th

UA Bdy
UA Bdy

UA Bdy

Farm
Fen

FEN  LANE
Mar Dyke

Cottages

6m

Works

C
L

A
Y

T
Y

E
R

O
A

D

27m

ST MARY'S LANE

Puddle
Dock

B187

Drain

D
ra

in

Clay Tye Hill

Garden
Centre

Corner Farm
Cottage

Farm

A
L

S

P
a
th

Path

G
N

5m

5m

Meadow

Golf
CourseAllot

Gdns

Farm
Corner

20m

Fairplay

Farm

6m

8m

B
1
8
6

7m

E
N

A

A
L

Nursery

Clay Tye Wood

Castle Cottages

Clay Tye
Farm

Warley Grid
Sub Station

Fen Farm

34m

I
N

N
U

FE

Lowlands

House
Claynes

D
ra

in

N L31m

Drain

D
ra

inD
ra

in

Depot

D

E

Nursery

N

Farm

Drain

Farm
Home

Old

S

Drain

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FB

Drain

FEN  LANE

Old England

England

O
C

K

M

N
D

O
N

R
O

A

3
5
m

Cottages

Drain

Farm
Bury

Bungalow
The

Track

Top
Meadow

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Wyngray

'
Y

Kennels

East View
Kennels

R
A

Drain

D
ra

in

FEN LANE

9m

19m

20
m

15m

1
0
m

15m

Lamorna

Bolyngtons2
0
m

1
0
m

30m

T
ra

c
k

Cottages

Golf
Course

M
T

Bury Farm

T
ra

c
k

FEN
LANE

B
1
8
6

B1421

33m

32m

20m

35m

35m

Little Tillingham Hall

Farm
Monks

Farm
Bodiam

Cottage
Tillingham Hall

Farmhouse

U
A

 B
d
y

30m

10m

15m

Seven
Acres

Top

S

A
L

E
N

E

LONDON BOROUGH OF

HAVERING

BOROUGH OF THURROCK

SUB
STATION

EER, Boro Const,

40m

Sewage

FEN  LANE

Works

Corner Farm
Cottage

Path

5m

20m

Drain

Farm
Home

Drain

Drain

FB

FEN  LANE

T
ra

c
k

D
ra

in

Drain

D
ra

in

LANE

9m

19m

1
0
m

15m

Bolyngtons

2
0
m

Path
Track

32m

&
 LB

 B
dy

G
L A

sly C
onst

LEGEND *,**

HEIGHT RESTRICTION ZONE 0 (MAX 8M)

HEIGHT RESTRICTION ZONE 1 (MAX 15M)

HEIGHT RESTRICTION ZONE 2 (MAX 21M)

0 500 1000m

N
* HEIGHTS ARE MEASURED FROM GROUND FLOOR ENTRY LEVEL

** HEIGHT RESTRICTION ZONES INCLUDE ROOF PLANT, EXCLUDE ROOF TOP  
PHOTOVOLTAIC PANELS, MANSAFE SYSTEMS OR HANDRAIL AND EXHAUST FLUES WHICH
WILL EXTEND NO MORE THAN 5 METRES ABOVE THE RESTRICTED BUILDING HEIGHT

Foundry London, Havering

North Ockendon, Upminster
51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDORev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size

A4

date

29/01/2024

scale

1:15000
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS

DRAWING

COPYRIGHT REEFGROUP

USE LATEST

REVISION

CHECK ALL

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

3

revision

LDO PLAN 3 LDO

BUILDING HEIGHTS

PLAN

-

GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

10m

Ashley
Farm

White Post

Track

Puddleduck
Farm Fisheries

The
Warren

40m

B
1
8
6

Drain

Farm
Brook

Kennels

8m

7m

B
1
8
6

ENALS'
YRATS

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Path
Path

Path

Golf Course

Sewage

3
5
m

EER, Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

P
a
th

P
a
th

UA Bdy
UA Bdy

UA Bdy

Farm
Fen

FEN  LANE
Mar Dyke

Cottages

6m

Works

C
L

A
Y

T
Y

E
R

O
A

D

27m

ST MARY'S LANE

Puddle
Dock

B187

Drain

D
ra

in

Clay Tye Hill

Garden
Centre

Corner Farm
Cottage

Farm

A
L

S

P
a
th

Path

G
N

5m

5m

Meadow

Golf
CourseAllot

Gdns

Farm
Corner

20m

Fairplay

Farm

6m

8m

B
1
8
6

7m

E
N

A

A
L

Nursery

Clay Tye Wood

Castle Cottages

Clay Tye
Farm

Warley Grid
Sub Station

Fen Farm

34m

I
N

N
U

FE

Lowlands

House
Claynes

D
ra

in

N L31m

Drain

D
ra

inD
ra

in

Depot

D

E

Nursery

N

Farm

Drain

Farm
Home

Old

S

Drain

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FB

Drain

FEN  LANE

Old England

England

O
C

K

M

N
D

O
N

R
O

A

3
5
m

Cottages

Drain

Farm
Bury

Bungalow
The

Track

Top
Meadow

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Wyngray

'
Y

Kennels

East View
Kennels

R
A

Drain

D
ra

in

FEN LANE

9m

19m

20
m

15m

1
0
m

15m

Lamorna

Bolyngtons2
0
m

1
0
m

30m

T
ra

c
k

Cottages

Golf
Course

M
T

Bury Farm

T
ra

c
k

FEN
LANE

B
1
8
6

B1421

33m

32m

20m

35m

35m

Little Tillingham Hall

Farm
Monks

Farm
Bodiam

Cottage
Tillingham Hall

Farmhouse

U
A

 B
d
y

30m

10m

15m

Seven
Acres

Top

S

A
L

E
N

E

LONDON BOROUGH OF

HAVERING

BOROUGH OF THURROCK

SUB
STATION

EER, Boro Const,

40m

Sewage

FEN  LANE

Works

Corner Farm
Cottage

Path

5m

20m

Drain

Farm
Home

Drain

Drain

FB

FEN  LANE

T
ra

c
k

D
ra

in

Drain

D
ra

in

LANE

9m

19m

1
0
m

15m

Bolyngtons

2
0
m

Path
Track

32m

&
 LB

 B
dy

G
L A

sly C
onst

LEGEND *,**

HEIGHT RESTRICTION ZONE 0 (MAX 8M)

HEIGHT RESTRICTION ZONE 1 (MAX 15M)

HEIGHT RESTRICTION ZONE 2 (MAX 21M)

0 500 1000m

N
* HEIGHTS ARE MEASURED FROM GROUND FLOOR ENTRY LEVEL

** HEIGHT RESTRICTION ZONES INCLUDE ROOF PLANT, EXCLUDE ROOF TOP  
PHOTOVOLTAIC PANELS, MANSAFE SYSTEMS OR HANDRAIL AND EXHAUST FLUES WHICH
WILL EXTEND NO MORE THAN 5 METRES ABOVE THE RESTRICTED BUILDING HEIGHT

Building Zone Ecology ZoneWild Grass
Cycle/ 

FootpathBorder
Ecol.
Zone

Meadow Fence

Security Fence
Enhanced Boundary

Vegetation

Strategic Bunding & Planting

5,000

SECTION 5 @ Year 15

0 5 10 15 20 30 40 50

Meters

Existing
Vegetation

Indicative mass

Indicative mass

Home Farm

SECTION A

0 500 1000m

N

A

A

KEY PLAN

Building Zone Ecology ZoneWild Grass
Cycle/ 

FootpathBorder
Ecol.
Zone

Meadow Fence

Security Fence
Enhanced Boundary

Vegetation

Strategic Bunding & Planting

5,000

SECTION 5 @ Year 15

0 5 10 15 20 30 40 50

Meters

Existing
Vegetation

Indicative mass

Indicative mass

Home Farm

SECTION A

0 500 1000m

N

A

A

KEY PLAN

P
age 31



EHDCCEHDCCEHDCC

18

EHDCC

2.3 - Indicative Building Typologies 

2.3.1 - Data Centre Buildings 

The proposed development will include up to 340,000 m2 
GEA of data centre floorspace plus associated external plant 
and security infrastructure which is considered as a Sui 
Generis use. In addition, the data centres will include roof 
top and external heating, cooling, ventilation and back-up 
power plant mounted on gantry or similar supports along 
with Photovoltaic (PV) panels, rainwater harvesting systems 
and storage tanks. The primary function of the proposed 
development would be to support public cloud computing 
services and the storage of data as part of the potential LDO 
beneficiary’s  long-term commercial plan and provision of 
services.

The specification of the design and quality of the proposed 
development will be very high. The data centre buildings 
will be sensitively designed to integrate softly into the new 
landscaping that will surround the buildings. The visuals 
used in this document are indicative visuals that illustrate the 
quality of the architecture that will be required by the LDO. 

In addition to the roof top PV’s the data centres sustainability 
credentials are further increased by the use a number of 
innovate sustainable solutions, such as the re-purposing 
of data centre heat to warm intensive indoor horticultural 
facilities. The use of renewable energy sources will also be 
key to achieving carbon neutrality, whilst also harnessing 
the natural energy potential of the site as far as possible. 
The proposed development would operate on a Carbon 
Neutral basis with Carbon Negative infrastructure designed 
and installed to feed into the grid in the future as green 

2.3 - Indicative Building Typologies 

2.3.2 - Battery Storage & Fuel Cells

The proposed development will provide for a variety of green 
energy technology initiatives to support the wider National 
Grid via grid balancing and compliment the proposed data 
use on site by supporting on-site renewable energy storage 
and by providing a zero-emissions energy source for on-site 
back up power supply.  

Fuel Cells are generally made off-site in modules to be lifted 
onto site with associated plant such as Hydrogen storage 
tanks, Electrolysers, UPS (uninterrupted power source that 
provides automated backup electrical power to a load 
when the electrical power input fails), and is connected to 
renewable energy power supply.  Energy generated from 
the fuel cells would connect to an on-site micro grid with 
substations, switch rooms and associated network equipment 
to supply the data campus with renewable energy as either 
a primary or backup power source. Fuel Cell sizes would 
vary and could be stacked for efficiency with suitable space 
between modules for maintenance access provision. The 
height of the proposed Fuel Cells is proposed to be between 4 
m and a maximum of 14 m.  

A minimum of 2 ha and maximum of 10 ha of site area for 
Battery Storage or grid balancing infrastructure use across the 
site to support Greater London and UK’s electrical network 
at peak periods, support renewable energy technology 
on and off-site together with the achieving the proposed 
development’s future Zero carbon targets.

Battery storage units are generally made off-site in modules 

technology advances. It is intended to be an exemplar for the 
future of data centre design. 

Typically, each build zone would accommodate between one 
to six data centre buildings with a variety of building numbers 
and in sizes between approximately 8,000 m2 and 60,000 
m2 GEA depending on plot size and building data capacity 
requirements. 

Data buildings would be a mix of three and four storeys in 
height with external plant. External plant would generally 
be located on gantry support systems both on the roof and 
external to the building with screening for aesthetics and 
noise mitigation. 

Hydro-treated Vegetable Oil (HVO) fuel-fired standby 
generators are planned for installation on all data centre 
buildings, serving as emergency power sources in the rare 
event of a grid failure. In addition, please note that certain 
facilities including horticulture and security management may 
necessitate localised standby power through HVO generators, 
contingent upon design specifications. However, these 
requirements are anticipated to be negligible in comparison 
to the standby power needs of the data centre buildings.

The drawing on the right hand size shows an indicative plan 
and section for a Data Centre building that would comply to 
the LDO parameters as currently understood.  

Foundry London, Havering

North Ockendon, Upminster
51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDORev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size

A4

date

29/01/2024

scale

1:1500
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS

DRAWING

COPYRIGHT REEFGROUP

USE LATEST

REVISION

CHECK ALL

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

FIG 3

revision

INDICATIVE TYPICAL

DATA CENTRE -

2
1
.0

0
0

1
7
.2

5
0

1
7
.2

5
0

2
1
.0

0
0

2
4
.0

0
0

2
1
.0

0
0

2
0
.0

0
0

1
7
.2

5
02
4
.0

0
0

SHORT SECTION A-A

LONG SECTION B-B

INDICATIVE DATA CENTRE

LANDSCAPING GUIDE PLOT

A

BB

GENERATORS

DATA HALL

DATA HALLDATA HALL

EXTERNAL
PLANT

GANTRY

EXTERNAL PLANT GANTRY

DATA BUILDING

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
G

E
N

E
R

A
T

O
R

S

HGV SERVICING

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 /

 O
F

F
IC

E

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 /

 T
E

C
H

EXTERNAL PLANT GANTRY EXTERNAL PLANT GANTRY

EXTERNAL PLANT GANTRY

G
E

N
E

R
A

T
O

R
S

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 /

 T
E

C
H

0 100M

CAR / CYCLE
PARKING

A

DATA HALL

GENERATORS

Foundry London, Havering

North Ockendon, Upminster
51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDORev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size

A4

date

29/01/2024

scale

1:1000
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS

DRAWING

COPYRIGHT REEFGROUP

USE LATEST

REVISION

CHECK ALL

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

FIG 3

revision

INDICATIVE FUEL CELL

PLOT -

INDICATIVE FUEL CELL

LANDSCAPING GUIDE PLOT

A

A

SHORT SECTION A-A

0 100M

FUEL CELLS

S
W

IT
C

H
G

E
A

R
 /

W
E

L
F

A
R

E

FUEL STORAGE

C
A

R
 /

 C
Y

C
L

E
P

A
R

K
IN

G

Foundry London, Havering

North Ockendon, Upminster
51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDORev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size

A4

date

29/01/2024

scale

1:1000
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS

DRAWING

COPYRIGHT REEFGROUP

USE LATEST

REVISION

CHECK ALL

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

FIG 3

revision

INDICATIVE BATTERY

STORAGE PLOT -

3
.0

0
0

INDICATIVE BATTERY STORAGE

LANDSCAPING GUIDE PLOT

SHORT SECTION A-A

A

A

0 100M

BATTERY STORAGE

S
W

IT
C

H
G

E
A

R
 /

W
E

L
F

A
R

E

C
A

R
 /

 C
Y

C
L

E
P

A
R

K
IN

G

to be lifted onto site and connected to local electrical infrastructure and substation to assist with grid balancing during peak 
times and support renewable energy low generation periods. Battery plant module sizes would vary and could be stacked for 
efficiency with suitable space between modules for maintenance access provision. The height of the proposed battery use 
would be  between 4 m and a maximum of 14 m.

The drawings above show an indicative plan and section for a Battery storage and Fuel cell plot arrangement that would comply 
to the LDO parameters as currently understood.  

19

P
age 32



EHDCCEHDCCEHDCC

20

EHDCC

2.3 - Indicative Building Typologies 

2.3.3 - Electrical Substation & Energy Centre

Given the primary data centre use on the site Digital Reef 
were keen to ensure the waste heat from these buildings 
and associated electrical infrastructure was not wasted. To 
allow the benefits of this waste heat to be harnessed a district 
heating energy centre,  a minimum of 200 m2 and maximum 
of 2,800 m2 GEA, is proposed for the site. 

The proposed Energy centre use would provide plant 
equipment to allow the surplus heat to be reused on-site in 
the heated indoor horticulture, Discovery centre and other 
accommodation requiring heating. The proposed Energy 
Centres can be deployed with a modular solution to allow 
further expansion of a district heating network off-site in 
the future when required, and feasible for another party to 
deliver. The potential District heating opportunities off-site 
could include any future new developments or retrofitting 
existing homes, schools, hospitals, and other buildings in 
the surrounding towns such as Upminster, Hornchurch and 
further afield to achieve zero carbon targets.

Due to the substantial electrical supply connection proposed 
from Warley substation north of the site, new electrical 
infrastructure would be required on-site including high and 
low voltage substations, switch rooms and other network 
distribution equipment. This electrical distribution equipment 
would be located within separate compounds on proposed 
build zones with cable network below ground, each 
compound would have a mixture of external equipment and 
buildings with switch rooms and other indoor equipment.

2.3 - Indicative Building Typologies 

2.3.4 - Horticulture & Discovery Centre

Continuing the agricultural legacy of the site and supporting 
future food security the proposed development would include 
a minimum of 26,000 m2 and maximum of 60,000 m2 GEA of 
heated horticultural facilities.
The proposed indoor horticulture facilities will replace and 
intensify the historic use of the site with year-round produce 
and an opportunity to trial the use of excess heat from the 
data centres as a net-Zero Carbon food growing initiative. 
New glass house structures, and support warehouse to 
accommodate management office, welfare, packaging and 
storage facilities together with associated heat network plant 
and water storage and treatment plant are proposed to be 
between  6 m and a maximum of 12 m high allowing a diverse 
range of produce to be grown.  

The facility would require a small service yard for movement 
of goods together with a minimal provision employee car and 
cycle parking bays and site landscaping. 

Given the innovative uses on the site and the potential 
opportunity for local people to engage with the green energy 
and data campus for years to come the Digital Reef team felt 
it was important to deliver a space for the people of Havering 
to come and learn more about the various on site initiatives 
and engage with the project. Considering this a Visitor Centre, 
a minimum of 200 m2 and maximum of 600 m2 GEA, with 
dedicated floor space for learning, discovery and teaching is 
proposed within build zone K to the south of the site, sharing 
access off Fen Lane with the proposed Horticulture use. The 
visitor centre will also include nature reserve management 

Foundry London, Havering

North Ockendon, Upminster
51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDORev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size

A4

date

29/01/2024

scale

1:1000
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS

DRAWING

COPYRIGHT REEFGROUP

USE LATEST

REVISION

CHECK ALL

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

FIG 3

revision

INDICATIVE

ELECTRICAL

SUBSTATION

-

INDICATIVE ELECTRICAL SUBSTATION

LANDSCAPING GUIDE PLOT

0 100M

C
O

N
T

R
O

L
R

O
O

M

PRIMARY
ELECTRICAL

SUBSTATION

C
O

N
T

R
O

L
B

U
IL

D
IN

G

CAR
PARKING

MAIN UKPN
ELECTRICAL

SUBSTATION

(GSP)

SWITCH
H O U S E

Foundry London, Havering

North Ockendon, Upminster
51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDORev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size

A4

date

29/01/2024

scale

1:1000
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS

DRAWING

COPYRIGHT REEFGROUP

USE LATEST

REVISION

CHECK ALL

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

FIG 3

revision

INDICATIVE TYPICAL

HORTICULTURE -

8
.0

0
0

SECTION A-A

INDICATIVE HORTICULTURE

LANDSCAPING GUIDE PLOT

A

HGV SERVICING

HORTICULTURE BUILDING

TANKS

0 100M

C
A

R
 /

 C
Y

C
L

E
P

A
R

K
IN

G

A

Foundry London, Havering

North Ockendon, Upminster
51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDORev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size

A4

date

29/01/2024

scale

1:1000
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS

DRAWING

COPYRIGHT REEFGROUP

USE LATEST

REVISION

CHECK ALL

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

FIG 3

revision

INDICATIVE DC ENERGY

CENTRE -

INDICATIVE DC ENERGY CENTRE

LANDSCAPING GUIDE PLOT

D
C

 E
N

E
R

G
Y

 C
E

N
T

R
E

0 100M

C
A

R
 /

 C
Y

C
L

E
P

A
R

K
IN

G

Foundry London, Havering

North Ockendon, Upminster
51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDORev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size

A4

date

29/01/2024

scale

1:500
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS

DRAWING

COPYRIGHT REEFGROUP

USE LATEST

REVISION

CHECK ALL

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

FIG 3

revision

INDICATIVE DISCOVERY

CENTRE -

INDICATIVE DISCOVERY CENTRE

LANDSCAPING GUIDE PLOT

COACH
DROP OFF

ZONE

C
A

R
 P

A
R

K
IN

G

C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 C

Y
C

L
E

 /
E

-C
Y

C
L

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G

0 50M

T
E

R
R

A
C

E
 /

R
A

IS
E

D
V

IE
W

IN
G

D
E

C
KDICOVERY

CENTRE

21

Build zone D will house the UKPN Main Primary Sub Station for the site that steps the power down from the Grid Supply point 
before stepping it down further across a six smaller substations across the site. 

The drawings above show an indicative plan and section for an Electrical Substation and an Energy Centre arrangement that 
would comply to the LDO parameters as currently understood. 

welfare and storage facilities and building height of up to 8 m together with external amenity areas and landscaping.  

The visitor centre will have shared use of the proposed nature reserve car park which would include a provision of visitor car 
parking spaces, cycle parking bays and coach parking bays. 

The drawings above show an indicative plan and section for a Horticultural Building and Discovery Centre arrangement that 
would comply to the LDO parameters as currently understood.  

P
age 33



EHDCC

2322

2.4 - The Masterplan Vision

The team at Digital Reef are very pleased that the afore mentioned detailed design work 
carried out over the last 6 months, has allowed us to refine the masterplan vision for the site 
and create a flexible framework for the delivery of this uniquely sustainable and innovative 
project that will deliver benefits to the people of Havering for generations to come. 

A number of the projects key elements and benefits are summarised below. 

• Low Carbon Digital Infrastructure 

• 600MVA Data Centre Capacity 

• 215 Hectare Site

• 113 Hectare Ecology Park

• Up to 400,000m2 built floor area divided into 11 Flexible Build Zones

• Innovative Green Energy Infrastructure

• Uniquely sustainable Data Centres

• District Heating & Horticultural waste heat infrastructure

• Carbon Sync Ecology Park

• Electrical Infrastructure that facilitates 445MVA of Renewable Energy

EHDCC EHDCC

Indicative Masterplan Concept visual 

Indicative Concept visual 

P
age 34



EHDCC

24

3.0 - The Project Programme Update

Once planning for the project has been secured the project will move from the current pre 
planning stage into the pre - contract phase. During this period the detailed drawn information 
required to deliver the site wider infrastructure works and ready each of the build zones for 
development will be developed with the relevant technical teams to allow the infrastructure 
works to be tendered to a Contractor to deliver them 

East Havering data centre campus on site Infrastructure works includes the following: 

• All site access estate roads (3no.) entering the site from Fen Lane, including   
 7.8m wide access road, pedestrian and cycle path and associated below   
 ground utilities infrastructure, surface water swales, estate soft landscaping and  
 ecology enhancements. 

• Development Build zone parameter fencing, security gate house and management  
 suite, security gates, visitor car parks and level build zones with capped services  
 ready for building construction phase. 

• UKPN power infrastructure work including on site Primary substation and secondary  
 primary substation network. 

The proposed development also includes a package of off-site Highway improvements 
still being refined with Ramboll who are preparing the Transport Assessment, that will also 
form part of these early infrastructure works. .  Initial known enhancements to date include 
isolated, up to 500mm widening and the new estate road access junctions along Fen Lane, 
improvements to Fen Lane/Ockendon Road (B186) junction and pedestrian and cycle lane 
access improvements on Ockendon Road (B186) north of Fenlands Nursery.  Any further 
highway enhancements are still to be confirmed by Ramboll on conclusion of their survey and 
assessment work.

Once the base infrastructure works have been partially completed the build plot and Ecology 

EHDCC

Q4 2024 
Planning 

Q2 2025 
Site 

Infastructure 
works 

commence

Q1 2029 
Ecology Park 
Complete on 

site 

Q2 2036 
Green Energy 
Infrastructure 

works complete 
on site 

Q1 2027 
Power On 
180 MVA

Q3 2029 
Power On 
420 MVA

Q1 2029 
First Data Centre 

Building Complete   

Q2 2031
Discovery 

Centre Opens 

Q4 2034 
Last Data Centre 

Building completes 
on Site

EHDCC

Concept visual 

Park works will be able to be undertaken. The Ecology Park works, detailed below, will be 
complete prior to first occupancy of any of the data centre  buildings. 

• 113 hectare ecology park including new surface water balancing ponds, ecology  
 ponds, new wetland, grassland and woodland habitats, site boundary treatments  
 formed with timber post and rail meadow fence and/or hedgerows. 

• New on site ecology park pedestrian and cycle paths running east to west and north  
 to south around the development building zone, together with other seasonal  
 trails and wetland walkways, picnic area, ecology engagement features such as bird  
 hides, education and play features. 

 The timescale for the delivery of the Discovery Centre will be determined imminently along 
with the other project benefits that form the S106 works. 

As part of the work carried out over the last 6 months the LBH LPA team and Digital Reef have 
carried out project programme scenario testing to establish two distinct programmes for the 
projects delivery; a likely quickest delivery programme and a likely slowest delivery programme 

These programmes then directly inform how the EIA assesses the impact of the scheme and 
what term of LDO is ultimately adopted. The development programme would comprise a 
phased delivery over approximately 12 – 20 years, anticipated to commence in 2025 and 
complete in 2037-2045. The development of build plots would be phased in line with power on 
dates.

Given the ever increasing need in the market for data centre floor space the Digital Reef team 
believe the project is more likely to be delivered in accordance with the quickest programme 
scenario but the prolongation programme has also been drafted and used for the EIA work to 
ensure the projects impact is understood across a longer duration. 

The prolonged programme allows for longer construction 
periods for certain plots to address potentially unforeseen 
disruptions to the projects delivery allowing for events such 
as the Covid 19 pandemic or the war in Ukraine that disrupt 
construction supply chains but also for delays due to long lead 
ins on certain items such as electrical transformers that can 
take up to 24 months to procure. 

Both programmes allow for the staggered delivery of the build 
plots in accordance with the power on programme dates 
Digital Reef have contracted with UKPN on. 

P
age 35



EHDCC

2726

EHDCC

Aerial Site Concept visual 

4.0 Project Q&A

 The following are responses prepared by Digital Reef in 
relation to queries raised by Members at Strategic Planning 
Committee on the 20th of April 2023.

Q - Better understanding and information around the financial 
and financial advantage and proposal in this area. 

The full detail of the projects financial benefits are still being 
refined by the project teams. The S106 agreement for example 
will include the details of the Havering Community Reef 
proposals that will provide a 20 year financial commitment 
to be invested in digital and green tech skills training 
locally. Once the full scope of the projects financial benefits 
are understood these will be included within the LDO 
documentation. 

Digital Reef appointed Oxford Economics to generate a report 
into the financial (economic) benefits of the proposals at East 
Havering in September 2022. 

Oxford Economics was founded in 1981 as a commercial 
venture with Oxford University’s business college to provide 
economic forecasting and modelling to UK companies and 
financial institutions expanding abroad. Since then, we have 
become one of the world’s foremost independent global 
advisory firms, providing reports, forecasts and analytical 
tools on more than 200 countries, 250 industrial sectors, and 
8,000 cities and regions. Their best-in-class global economic 
and industry models and analytical tools gives them an 
unparalleled ability to forecast external market trends and 
assess their economic, social, and business impact. Oxford 
Economics (OE) is a key adviser to corporate, financial 

EHDCC

Concept visual 

and government decision-makers and thought leaders. 
With a worldwide client base of over 2,000 international 
organisations, including leading multinational companies 
and financial institutions; key government bodies and trade 
associations; and top universities, consultancies, and think 
tanks.

Calculating the economic impact of something typically 
involves analysing its effects on various aspects of an 
economy, such as production, employment, income, and 
spending. There are different methods for calculating 
economic impact, but a commonly used approach is input-
output analysis, the approach used in the Oxford Economics 
Report. 

Here’s a simplified explanation of how this works:
• The first step is to identify the direct effects of the activity 

or event you’re examining. For example, if you’re analysing 
the economic impact of a new factory, the direct effects 
might include the initial investment in construction, the 
ongoing operation of the factory, and the products it 
produces.

• Next, you consider the indirect effects. These are the 
secondary impacts that result from the direct effects. For 
instance, the new factory might create demand for goods 

and services from other businesses in the area, such as 
suppliers of raw materials or providers of transportation 
services.

• Finally, you account for the induced effects. These are the 
tertiary impacts that result from increased household 
spending as a result of the direct and indirect effects. 
For example, employees of the new factory may spend 
their wages on housing, groceries, and other goods and 
services, generating additional economic activity.

• Throughout this process, economists use multipliers to 
estimate the total economic impact. Multipliers represent 
the additional economic activity generated by each unit 
of initial spending. For example, a multiplier of 2 indicates 
that for every £1 of initial spending, £2 of total economic 
activity is generated.

• To quantify these effects, economists collect data on 
various economic indicators, such as employment levels, 
wages, production outputs, and consumer spending 
patterns. This data is then analysed using economic 
models and software to estimate the overall economic 
impact.

• It’s important to conduct sensitivity analysis to assess 
the robustness of the results. This involves testing the 
impact of different assumptions and variables to see how 
sensitive the economic impact estimates are to changes 

in these factors.

Overall, calculating the economic impact of something 
involves a combination of economic theory, data analysis, 
and modelling techniques to assess how an activity or event 
affects the overall economy, both directly and indirectly.

The DR & LBH LPA team are currently reviewing all of the 
financial input data provided by DR (including the project cost 
plan that includes all of the investment during Construction) 
using Gardiner Theobald Cost Consultancy to independently 
review the data provided. LBH have asked that DR include all 
of the Data Centre’s fit out within these costs (DR previously 
excluded) which will greatly increase the initial investment 
figures during construction and will in turn increase the 
economic impact of the project. 

Once the LBH’s Consultant have finished their review their 
revised figures will be passed to the team at Oxford Economics 
to refresh their report. This report will be made available to 
Members and the public. 

P
age 36



EHDCC

2928

EHDCC

Aerial Site Concept visual 

4.0 Project Q&A

 The following are responses prepared by Digital Reef in 
relation to queries raised by Members at Strategic Planning 
Committee on the 20th of April 2023.

Q -  What happens if there wasn’t a need for that facility in the 
future and how resilient is the development (legacy plan)?. 

Data Centres are widely acknowledged to be critical national 
infrastructure whose importance and significance is growing. 
As such Digital Reef believe the development at East Havering 
will be used in the proposed format for generations to come 
with the internal specialist kit within the buildings replaced 
over time in much the same way the railway infrastructure 
across the UK has evolved over time based on a consistent and 
enduring need. 

 The Government’s National Data Strategy 2020 highlights the 
fact that the data market in the UK is the largest in Europe and 
the infrastructure on which it relies is a ‘vital national asset’ . 
The Strategy states :

“We are currently in the middle of a fourth industrial 
revolution. Technological innovation has transformed our 
lives, changing the way we live, work and play. At the same 
time, this innovation has brought with it an exponential 
growth in data: in its generation and use, and in the 
world’s increasing reliance upon it. By embracing data 
and the benefits its use brings, the UK now faces tangible 
opportunities to improve our society and grow our economy. 
If we get this right, data and data-driven technologies like AI 
could provide a significant boost to the entire economy. Data 
can improve productivity and provide better-quality jobs. 

EHDCC

Concept visual 

But it can also transform our public services and dramatically 
improve health outcomes nationally. It can keep us safe 
and assist the reduction of crime, speed the journey to de-
carbonisation, and, used well, drive efforts to create a more 
inclusive, less biased society.”

This demonstrates a clear general need for additional data 
capacity in the UK as a matter of principle. This need is being 
acknowledged in appeal decisions in relation to individual 
data centre proposals. The recent Link Park appeal  accepted 
that there is a “’notable need’ for data centres ‘in the country as 
a whole’”. 

More recently in the case of the Woodlands Park appeal 
decision, the Secretary of State has concluded that 
“the provision of data centres would make a significant 
contribution to the UK economy, and that significant weight 
should be given to the need for additional data centre 
capacity within the UK”  (emphasis added).

The UK government recognises the importance of data 
centres in supporting various aspects of the economy, 
including digital infrastructure, innovation, and the growth 
of the digital economy. Data centres are critical for storing 
and processing vast amounts of digital information, which 

is increasingly central to modern business operations, 
research, government services, and everyday life. Several 
government initiatives and policies reflect the recognition of 
the significance of data centres:
• The UK government has made investments in digital 
infrastructure, including data centres, as part of broader 
efforts to support economic growth and competitiveness. This 
includes funding for the expansion of high-speed broadband 
networks and improvements to digital connectivity across the 
country.
• The UK government has developed a Digital Strategy 
aimed at ensuring that the UK remains at the forefront of 
the global digital economy. This strategy includes initiatives 
to support digital infrastructure, innovation, and skills 
development, all of which are relevant to the role of data 
centres.
• The government has implemented regulations and 
standards to ensure the security and protection of data stored 
and processed in data centres. This includes compliance with 
the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and other 
relevant data protection laws to safeguard individuals’ privacy 
and data security.
• There is also a growing emphasis on the 
environmental sustainability of data centres. The UK 
government has set targets for reducing carbon emissions and 

promoting energy efficiency, which includes encouraging the 
adoption of renewable energy sources and more sustainable 
practices in data centre operations.

It is also important to remember that data centres are 
critical infrastructure and integral to not only our everyday 
lives eg: WhatsApp, Facebook, Google, e commerce but 
also for essential services eg: Covid response, working 
from home, health appointments etc.  The requirement for 
digital infrastructure, including Data Centres, is only going 
to increase as the data economy and digital transformation 
continues to accelerate as does our reliance on digital 
infrastructure.   

The availability of the power at Warley and location within 
London’s established Data centre Availability Zone is driving 
the data centre demand on this site specifically which in 
turn provides comfort on the long-term potential of this site.  
Over and above the capital Digital Reef invest further capital 
investment will be made by companies like Microsoft, AWS , 
Google etc totalling in excess of £15Bn at this location.
  
These investment decisions are made on the basis of a long 
term investment and pay back by industry experts who have 
the knowledge that the requirement for their products and 

the revenues will last a long time and in turn the legacy. 

With this in mind we can say with certainty for at least another 
50 -100 years that the demand exists.  Should we be wrong 
and the site no longer be required only 110 acres is being 
developed for data centre and given that the LDO expires 
after 20 years the land would have to secure a new LDO for a 
new use class if data centres were no longer relevant.

P
age 37



EHDCC

3130

EHDCC

4.0 Project Q&A

 The following are responses prepared by Digital Reef in 
relation to queries raised by Members at Strategic Planning 
Committee on the 20th of April 2023.

Q -  More clarity of phasing and timescales when the data 
centre would up and running. 

Based on the indicative programmes detailed above we 
imagine the first data centre buildings would be operational 
at the end of 2029.  The Ecology Park would also be completed 
and become operational to coincide with this milestone. 
With the Discovery Centre becoming operational shortly 
afterwards. The exact detail of these publicly accessible 
elements of the scheme becoming operational is being 
developed currently with the LBH team. 

We then imagine the remaining Data Centre plots will be 
delivered over an 12 year period linked to the Power on dates 
however we are mindful this period may be longer based on 
occupational factors. 

Please refer to section 3.0 above for further detail. 

EHDCC

Q - Relationship with the Freeport and explaining that.

Digital Reef London sits within the Thames Freeport being 
within London Borough of Havering but is outside of the 
customs and tax zones.

The East Havering Data Centre Campus is the biggest 
infrastructure project by value within the Freeport.  Both 
digital and  clean energy capability is critical to the Freeports 
smart port and clean energy ambitions.  This gives London 
Borough of Havering an influential role within the Freeport in 
terms of the digital and energy strategy as well as the inward 
investment.

The impact will be determined further once a consent is in 
place and the role of the Thames Freeport can be explored 
further.

Q - Giving information around the construction phase and 
modular units and where they would be manufactured. 

The construction is phased over 12 -20 years and is well suited 
to modular construction given the technology nature of the 
use.  Modular is more sustainable and allows the end users 
to build off site and assemble on site with a shortened build 
period.  

Digital Reef’s ambition would be to locate an advanced 
manufacturing facility for modular sustainable data centres 
in the South of the Borough on land to be made available by 
LBH.  This would not only support the site but also provide 
an export capability and skilled workforce in the Thames 
Freeport.  This is an ambition however which will need the 
support of the Data Centre building occupiers and can not be 
determined until planning consent is achieved   and occupier 
conversations can be advanced. 

Q - Transport to the site, around the site and cycling for those 
who would be working at the site and linking with local 
cycling group 

As part of the proposals cycle routes to the site and within 
(which obviously don’t currently exist as it’s not yet public 
land) are to be implemented within the first phase of works 
for construction and for completion including visitors to the 
ecology park and discovery centre.  

Please see drawing opposite. 

The LPA will provide further detail on how they intend to 
consult with local cycle groups including, but not limited to 
Havering Cyclists and Better Streets for Havering.

Foundry London, Havering

North Ockendon, Upminster
51 Welbeck Street, London, W1G 9HL

T   020 7637 0601

E   mail@reefgroup.co.uk

W  www.reefgroup.co.uk

LDORev Date     Comments

project drawing number

size

A4

date

29/01/2024

scale

1:15000
REPORT DISCREPANCIES

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS

DRAWING

COPYRIGHT REEFGROUP

USE LATEST

REVISION

CHECK ALL

DIMENSIONS ON SITE

drawing title

4

revision

LDO PLAN 4 LDO

ACCESS AND

CIRCULATION PLAN

-

GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

10m

Ashley
Farm

White Post

Track

Puddleduck
Farm Fisheries

The
Warren

40m

B
1
8
6

Drain

Farm
Brook

Kennels

8m

7m

B
1
8
6

ENALS'
YRATS

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Path
Path

Path

Golf Course

Sewage

3
5
m

EER, Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

P
a
th

P
a
th

UA Bdy
UA Bdy

UA Bdy

Farm
Fen

FEN  LANE
Mar Dyke

Cottages

6m

Works

C
L

A
Y

T
Y

E
R

O
A

D

27m

ST MARY'S LANE

Puddle
Dock

B187

Drain

D
ra

in

Clay Tye Hill

Garden
Centre

Corner Farm
Cottage

Farm

A
L

S

P
a
th

Path

G
N

5m

5m

Meadow

Golf
CourseAllot

Gdns

Farm
Corner

20m

Fairplay

Farm

6m

8m

B
1
8
6

7m

E
N

A

A
L

Nursery

Clay Tye Wood

Castle Cottages

Clay Tye
Farm

Warley Grid
Sub Station

Fen Farm

34m

I
N

N
U

FE

Lowlands

House
Claynes

D
ra

in

N L31m

Drain

D
ra

inD
ra

in

Depot

D

E

Nursery

N

Farm

Drain

Farm
Home

Old

S

Drain

Drain

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

FB

Drain

FEN  LANE

Old England

England

O
C

K

M

N
D

O
N

R
O

A

3
5
m

Cottages

Drain

Farm
Bury

Bungalow
The

Track

Top
Meadow

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

D
ra

in

Wyngray

'
Y

Kennels

East View
Kennels

R
A

Drain

D
ra

in

FEN LANE

9m

19m

20
m

15m

1
0
m

15m

Lamorna

Bolyngtons2
0
m

1
0
m

30m

T
ra

c
k

Cottages

Golf
Course

M
T

Bury Farm

T
ra

c
k

FEN
LANE

B
1
8
6

B1421

33m

32m

20m

35m

35m

Little Tillingham Hall

Farm
Monks

Farm
Bodiam

Cottage
Tillingham Hall

Farmhouse

U
A

 B
d
y

30m

10m

15m

Seven
Acres

Top

S

A
L

E
N

E

LONDON BOROUGH OF

HAVERING

BOROUGH OF THURROCK

SUB
STATION

EER, Boro Const,

40m

Sewage

FEN  LANE

Works

Corner Farm
Cottage

Path

5m

20m

Drain

Farm
Home

Drain

Drain

FB

FEN  LANE

T
ra

c
k

D
ra

in

Drain

D
ra

in

LANE

9m

19m

1
0
m

15m

Bolyngtons

2
0
m

Path
Track

32m

&
 LB

 B
dy

G
L A

sly C
onst

BURY FARM
WALK

NORTH
OCKENDON

WALK

THAMES
CHASE

FOREST
LINK WETLAND

DISCOVERY
ZONE

WEST
LOOKOUT

WOODLAND

LONDON

FREEPORT

NATURE

RESERVE

FEN LANE
MAIN LONDON

DATA FREEPORT

ENTRANCE

0 500 1000m

N

BUILD ZONES

PROPOSED STRATEGIC ACCESS

ROADS

PROPOSED SWALES (INDICATIVE)

LEGEND

STRATEGIC LANDSCAPING ZONES

PONDS (EXISTING AND PROPOSED)

PRIMARY STRATEGIC FOOTWAY / CYCLEPATH

(2M + 3M WIDE)

SECONDARY PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

(INDICATIVE LOCATIONS)

VEHICLE ACCESS

PEDESTRIAN / CYCLE ACCESS

SECONDARY ACCESS ROADS

(INDICATIVE LOCATIONS)

MAIN LONDON DATA FREEPORT

ENTRANCE AND SECURITY

CHECKPOINT WITH CAR PARKING

LOCATION FOR WETLAND DISCOVERY

CENTRE WITH INDICATED WALKING

DISTANCE (1 MIN)
PROPOSED SECURITY FENCE LINE

WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE

PEDESTRIAN ROUTES

P
age 38



32 33

EHDCC EHDCC

4.0 Project Q&A

 The following are responses prepared by Digital Reef in 
relation to queries raised by Members at Strategic Planning 
Committee on the 20th of April 2023.

Q -  Clarity on the use of renewable energy but not available 
onsite but to connect up to the grid. 

The data centre project and required grid upgrade works 
at Warley Primary grid supply point, funded by Digital 
Reef London, has been the catalyst (first comer works) for 
a significant upgrade for works to the grid which enables 
(second comers) a number of renewable energy sources to 
connect into the grid at Warley. These renewable energy 
projects amount to 440MVA of solar and battery storage 
projects from the wider region. Digital Reef London (classed 
as First Comer) are funding the UKPNL reinforcement works 
which will be used for other customers connections (Classed 
as Second Comers). 

In accordance with The Electricity (Connections Charges) 
Regulations 2017 in cases where other persons have paid for 
all or part of the cost of the first connection, the Regulations 
require the relevant electricity distributor to recover an 
amount from the second comer/s and to apply that amount, 
less administrative expenses, to reimburse the persons 
who paid for the first connection.  The extent of these 
reimbursements is currently unknown but Digital Reef repair 
the first comer and catalyst to the infrastructure upgrade 
works in any case. 

These projects are coming forwards as a direct result of the 
project funding the UKPNL reinforcement works would not 

be viable without the upgrade works.  The team are also 
exploring the possibility of direct wire connections to these 
renewable projects.

On site the project will benefit from solar and photovoltaic on 
the data halls and large scale battery storage.

Q -  Jobs available on site and then taking into account the 
circular economy and the off-site benefits to the economy are?

The proposed development will provide a range of 
economic benefits to the Havering economy throughout 
the construction phase and during operation. The proposed 
development represents a £5.30 billion investment to 
improve London and the UK’s digital infrastructure, of which 
£2.72 billion will be spent in the UK, including £2.0 billion in 
Havering, during the five-year construction phase. 

The construction phase is estimated to support an average 
of £204 million of GVA, 2,800 jobs, and £86 million in wages, 
across the Havering economy per year. Once fully operational, 
the proposed development will directly generate a net 
increase of £391 million of GVA, 1,240 jobs, and £65 million in 
wages, across the Havering economy. 

As supply chain (indirect) and wage consumption (induced) 
spending leaks outside of the Havering economy, the first 
full year of operations could generate a £736 million GVA 
contribution to UK GDP, supporting 7,130 jobs across the 
workforce, and £245 million in wages nationally. 2,410 of these 
jobs would be within Havering when the direct, indirect and 
induced jobs are all factored into the calculations. 

The number of onsite employees would total 300, during 
operational phase,  however these are split over three shift 

Q -  Linking into existing local community groups those with 
local ecology interests. 

Digital Reef are currently undertaking a programme of 
public engagement on the project and would welcome the 
opportunity to meet with and local ecology groups who may 
wish to engage. 

Digital Reef have reached out to a number of local groups 
including Thames Chase Community Forest who we hope will 
continue to engage with us and help us shape our proposals. 

The LPA will provide further detail on how they intend to 
consult with local ecological interest groups as part of the 
formal consultation process. 

Q - Further information on embodied carbon and the 
environmental impact of battery storage etc. 

The construction of the project has significant embodied and 
operational carbon and Digital Reef has committed to creating 
an exemplar sustainable data and clean energy campus by 
limiting the carbon consumption of the project at every 
stage. The DR and LBH LPA team are currently reviewing and 
assessing the requirements of the project to offset operational 
and a proportion of its embodied  carbon and more detail will 
be made available in due course. 
 
Batteries offer the benefit of taking energy off the grid at off 
peak times (including renewables) and re-selling it at peak 
times and for use by the data centres.  Whilst batteries have 
a carbon footprint the surplus energy they store provides 
a sustainable solution.  Furthermore battery technology is 
changing in terms of the materials and precious resource 
content with research being carried out to replace  metals 
such as lithium with the more sustainable sodium-ion.

The flexibility within the LDO consent will allow for emerging 
technology with improved green credentials to be used on 
the site as long as it complies with the parameters for land use 
set within the LDO documentation. Providing details of the 
embodied carbon prior to construction  of these elements of 
the project will be conditioned in the consent.

patterns with some employees only attending site once a 
week, no more than 30-60 people would be anticipated to be 
on site at any point during the average working day. 

(Please note these figures are currently being reviewed and 
they are expected to increase greatly once revised costings are 
reviewed by Oxford Economics). 
terms of the digital and energy strategy as well as the inward 
investment.

The impact will be determined further once a consent is in 
place and the role of the Thames Freeport can be explored 
further.

P
age 39



34 35

EHDCC EHDCC

4.0 Project Q&A

 The following are responses prepared by Digital Reef in 
relation to queries raised by Members at Strategic Planning 
Committee on the 20th of April 2023.

Q -  Expanding the site if reached capacity in the future. 

Digital Reef have no intention to expand the site. 

The site as shown currently is the full extent of the site and 
any future application would require a revised consent. The 
site layout and capacity for the data centre, clean energy 
and horticulture has been designed by the architect and 
engineering team based on the power secured by Digital Reef 
London and clean energy requirements for the campus.  

The co-location ecosystem for clean energy, data centre, 
innovative horticulture, district heating system and ecology 
will not require any further land in the future. 

Q -  Further information on security and on what was required 
and how it affects the appearance of the site 

Digital Reef have consulted with the London Metropolitan 
Police during the design development for the site to ensure 
the proposals are robust and sufficient given the use of the 
buildings on the site. The Metropolitan police have also been 
consulted on the EIA scoping report which may influence 
design, and may have further inputs when the LPA consults 
on the LDO and EIA. As the design stands currently the site 
will have two lines of security. One at the outer site boundary 
and one around each of the site’s development zones. The 
specification of these security measures are as follows:

Outer site boundary and ecology park:
• Access to the site via official entrance points will be 

restricted with gates. Public thoroughfare of ecology park 
will be limited to operation or daylight hours for public 
safety. 

• The site outer perimeter will be restricted with post and 
rail fences, ditches, bunds and defensive planting i.e. 
hawthorn or hedges and prevent vehicles unlawfully 
entering the site 

Development zones including Data Centre Campus:
• The Development zone perimeter fence will be rated to 

LPS 1175 Issue 7 SR1 or higher and a minimum height of 

Q -  Lead and link the plans project and into the heritage 
around that area.

The on-site discovery centre creates a unique opportunity to 
link the project with the heritage of the surrounding area and 
celebrate a new era for the site. The programme of events and 
use of the Discovery Centre will be shaped by the people of 
Havering via an engagement process post adoption of the 
LDO. 

The LDO will require this engagement process to be overseen 
by LBH and will ensure the centre is operated in a way that 
maximises its accessibility and a benefits for the people of 
Havering. The site, and its wider context has always been 
a productive landscape that has evolved over time from 
ancient woodland to live stock pasture, and then from the 
1700s on wards to intensive arable farmland and the site of 
the infrastructure required to provide power to our homes, 
businesses and daily lives, be that the construction of Warley 
Substation in the 1950s or the solar parks at Cranham in 
2016 the site and its context is an ever evolving productive 
landscape.

2.4m and have video surveillance with 2 way camera to 
negate the need to illuminate the perimeter fence. 

• All fences should have a 2m minimum standoff between 
the fence and any trees and tree canopies. 

• Individual build plots or data buildings will have its 
own security fence between 2.4-3m high, inside the 
development zone perimeter fence. 

• Site entrance will include a full height automated vehicle 
gate and pedestrian and cycle gate together with a visitor 
reception gate house.   

• Visitors will be required to park outside the campus fence 
and report to the reception building for sign in. Once 
signed in and provided with access control credentials, 
visitors will be able to enter site either by the pedestrian 
gate, or by driving their vehicle in.

Q -  Set out what consultation with community will take place 
and feedback and encouraging businesses into Havering. 

The LPA will undertake formal statutory consultation on the  
proposals with communities and businesses, Digital Reef 
are undertaking an engagement programme that will reach 
out to local businesses, schools and residents to keep them 
informed of the proposals as they emerge. 

Once the planning process has been concluded Digital 
Reef are extremely keen to consult and engage with local 
businesses to ensure the benefit from the project and have 
the opportunity to engage positively with the project at as 
many different levels as possible. We will look to hold project 
meet the buyer days, open days, skills and training events 
and ensure our tenants and contractors are embedded in this 
process. 

Q -  Wider issue around the advantage of having data capacity 
in this country rather than relying on elsewhere. 

The digital economy which includes knowledge and high 
value sectors such as fintech, financial services, life science, 
creatives, climate tech, space, medtech, healthcare, artificial 
intelligence, machine learning etc is a high growth sector 
offering economic growth, high value jobs and opportunity. 

Data centres are critical infrastructure and data is a new 
asset class of sovereign value.  It is in the UK’s interest from 
a sovereign, geopolitical security and economic perspective 
to ensure our data is held on UK soil to ensure the value and 
benefit derived is of value to the UK citizens. The English legal 
system, universities and service economy also provides a safe 
haven for data and digital activities.

From a sustainability perspective given the computing power 
required it is also not only cost effective but better for the 
planet to have a domestic capability as less energy is required 
to transfer data locally. 

P
age 40



36 37

EHDCC EHDCC

4.0 Project Q&A

 The following are responses prepared by Digital Reef in 
relation to queries raised by Members during the site visit on 
25th March 2024 

Q -  Are there any main sewers running across the site and if 
so, where are they?

No, there aren’t any mains sewers running across the site. 

Q -  Are there any existing adopted public footpaths on the 
site and if so, will they be maintained or diverted?

No, but there are two existing public rights of way. There will 
be a number of new footpaths across the site in the finalised 
proposals, the landscape Masterplan shown earlier in this 
document is a work in progress but visualises how the site 
may look with a number of new cycle and pedestrian routes 
being created across the currently inaccessible site. 

Q -  Can we have some drawings of the data centre buildings? 

Please refer to the drawings in this document. 

The Digital Reef project website also has a fully interactive 
map showing strategic views from around the site as they 
are currently and how they will look once the data centre has 
been built and the vegetation is 15 years old. 

easthaveringdatacentrecampus.com

Q -  Are the existing pylons staying on the site?

Yes, these are the National Grid’s pylons that Digital Reef have 
no ability to move or modify in any way and as such they will 
be being retained. 

Q -  What is the agricultural grading of the land and where it is 
farmed, what is grown or grazed? 

The current land is arable farm land used for different arable 
crops. The Digital Reef team are seeking more detail on the 
type of crops and yield level currently. 

Please see drawing on the left for detail of lands 3a and 3b 
grading. 

Q -  Why hasn’t the opportunity been taken to locate the site 
closer to West Horndon rail station?

There are no alternative sites capable of delivering the East 
Havering Data Centre Campus due to the lack of power 
availability elsewhere. 

Digital Reef have carried out a very detailed Alternative Sites 
Assessment process as part of the project works and are 
happy for these documents to be shared with Members once 
the LPA team have concluded their review. 

*
**** *

0 300m 600m

1:15,000

P
age 41



38 39

EHDCC EHDCC

4.0 Project Q&A

 The following are responses prepared by Digital Reef in 
relation to queries raised by Members during the site visit on 
25th March 2024 

Q -  Why is the main access on Fen Lane?

The access is located on Fen Lane based on traffic modelling 
work and because it is accessible from both directions thus  
minimising the projects impact on the local network whilst 
still providing the accessibility that the Highways Authority 
require. 

The EIA consultant Ramboll is currently carrying out further 
transport modelling work to stress test this and ensure 
there are no other routes into the site that we should be 
considering. 

Q -  Within the red line boundary, how many landowners are 
there and what it the status of the land acquisition? 

There are 7 Landowners who have all signed legal contracts to 
sell their land. All other information is commercially sensitive 
and highly confidential. 

Q -  How many operators will there be?

The campus and its scale will appeal to a number of UK and 
global companies with the likely number of end users to be 
2-10 depending on the mix of hyperscaler and co-locator 
tenants. 

Further detail can be confirmed once planning is secured and 
detailed commercial conversations are progressed. 

Q -  Could any of the buildings be sunk into the ground?

General this is limited due to the nature of the site levels and 
adjacent flood zones, however build zones on slopped section 
of site will be levelled with cut and fill, therefore partially 
sunken into the ground on the uphill sides of the build zone.

Section 2 of this document provides further detail on this 
point and drawings of the site gradient. 

Q -  What is happening to the Garden Centre and its car 
parking?  

The garden centre and parking are staying. 

Q -  Can we have the Local Plan designations spatially 
mapped?  

Please see map on the left showing these designations. 

Please also see map illustrating the renewable/clean energy 
projects in the area that the team are currently aware of. 

London
Borough

of Havering

Brentwood
Borough
Council

Thurrock Council

Warley Grid
Sub Station 

Flood Zone 2

Flood Zone 3a

Flood Zone 3b

EAST HAVERING DATA CENTRE CAMPUS

POLICIES MAP
Contains Ordnance Survey data 

© Crown copyright and database right 2024

Scale 1: 25 000 @ A4

0 500 1km

Sources:
Havering Local Plan 2016-2031 Policies Map (adopted 2021)
Brentwood Local Plan 2016-2033 Policies Map (adopted 2022)
Thurrock Core Strategy and Policies for Management of Development
2011-2026 Policies Map (adopted 2015)

LDO Boundary

Local Planning Authority Boundaries

Metropolitan Green Belt

Conservation Areas

Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation – Metropolitan

Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation – Borough 

Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation – Local

Local Nature Reserves

Parks, Open Spaces, Playing fields and Allotments

Thames Chase Community Forest

Minerals Safeguarding Areas

Land Suitable for Medium Wind Energy Developments

Land Suitable for Small Wind Energy Developments

21/00077/FUL

P0888.18 P1724.21

Z0007.23

Bulphan Fen Solar Farm
21/00077/FUL

21/00077/FUL

P0888.18 P1724.21

Z0007.23

Medebridge Solar Farm
21/02159/FUL

Bulphan Fen Solar Farm
21/00077/FULMedebridge Solar Farm

21/02159/FUL

LDO Boundary

Bulphan Fen Solar Farm
21/00077/FUL

Medebridge Solar Farm
21/02159/FUL

Extent of Solar Panel Coverage

Z0007.23

EAST HAVERING DATA CENTRE CAMPUS

APPLICATIONS PLAN

Contains Ordnance Survey data 
© Crown copyright and database right 2024

Permitted Solar Applications

Permitted Battery Storage Applications

Battery Storage Applications Awaiting
Decision

P0888.18

P1724.21

0 250 500 metres

P
age 42



41

EHDCC EHDCC

4.0 Project Q&A

 The following are responses prepared by Digital Reef in 
relation to queries raised by Members during the site visit on 
25th March 2024 

Q -  How does the power get transformed from 400kV to the 
necessary 132kV?

Transforming power from 400 kV (kilovolts) to 132 kV involves 
the use of transformers. Transformers are devices that can step 
up or step down the voltage level of an alternating current 
(AC) electrical system while maintaining the power (in an ideal 
scenario, disregarding losses).

Here’s a simplified explanation of how power is transformed 
from 400 kV to 132 kV:
The first step is to use a step-down transformer. This 
transformer is designed to reduce the voltage level from 400 
kV to 132 kV. A step-down transformer has more turns in its 
secondary coil than in its primary coil. When the high-voltage 
current flows through the primary coil, it induces a magnetic 
field, which in turn induces a lower voltage in the secondary 
coil.
According to Faraday’s law of electromagnetic induction, 
a changing magnetic field induces an electromotive force 
(EMF) in a nearby conductor. In a transformer, this principle is 
utilised to transfer energy from one circuit to another without 
direct electrical connection, by varying the magnetic flux 
through the coils.
It’s important to note that in an ideal transformer (which 
neglects losses due to resistance, hysteresis, and eddy 
currents), the power input to the transformer is equal to the 
power output. So, while the voltage is decreased from 400 kV 

40

to 132 kV, the current increases proportionally to maintain the 
same power level. This allows for efficient transmission and 
distribution of electrical power.
After the voltage has been stepped down to 132 kV, the 
electricity can be transmitted through power lines at this 
lower voltage level. Lower voltage levels are often used 
for local distribution networks and for supplying power to 
industrial facilities, commercial areas, and residential areas.

Overall, the process involves the use of transformers to step 
down the voltage level while maintaining power, enabling 
efficient transmission and distribution of electricity through 
the power grid.

Q -  How will the development be screened? 

As detailed in the document above the development will 
be screened with bunding around the site and extensive 
planting.  The applicant and LPA have carried out extensive 
work to ensure the views and visual impact is minimised. 

The EIA work which is ongoing will further review this via a 
Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment. The interactive 
visual map on the project website accurately depicts the views 
from 15 view points surrounding the site when the vegetation 
is at 15 years of maturity. 

easthaveringdatacentrecampus.com

Q -  Does the EIA compare heat emitted from the 
development with the average temperature for the site across 
the year?

Ramboll have advised that the EIA does not consider the 
temperature of the emissions as it is considered unlikely 
that the proposed development would generate significant 
environmental effects in this regard, and the understanding 
is that warm/hot air emissions would be unlikely impact 
ambient air temperatures within and around the site. 

Q -  Has the site been extracted previously? And are there 
minerals on site?

The site is located adjacent to a minerals safeguarding area, 
and as such Digital Reef arranged a consultant to carry our 
intrusive surveys across the site. During this process the 
samples taken from the site showed no evidence of any 
minerals of note and as such the technical reports concluded 
the site had not been extracted and that there are no minerals 
required for extraction on the site. 

Q -  How bio-diverse is the agricultural land at present – how 
would that compare to the development?  Do the farmers 
have obligations at present to meet bio-diversity standards/
targets?

A full response to this question is being prepared currently as 
part of the EIA work being undertaken by Ramboll. 

Digital Reef understand that 25ha of the land is best and 
most versatile agricultural land but this will be clarified in the 
Ramboll EIA work once issued.  

As Digital Reef understand it the agricultural land is low 
grade intensively farmed land with no specific biodiversity 
requirements.  The proposed ecology park will achieve 
significantly more carbon sequestration and vastly increased 
biodiversity. 

P
age 43



Concept visual 

P
age 44


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	Minutes
	240125 minutes
	Minutes


	5 LAND NORTH OF FEN LANE, NORTH OCKENDON
	EHDC May SPC Presentation - Digital Reef


